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2 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial Statistics B #5451 & Kl
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Financial Ratios BB H R
2005 2004 2003
ZERFHAE CEE YA CRE AR

Formula for finanical ratios:

Current ratio

WH L

Quick ratio
W)

Net gearing ratio
P E A AR
Gross profit margin
EAE

Net profit margin
[ERIES

Return on average equity

- 35 B A 1]

iR A /N

Current assets/Current liabilities

B BT £

(Current assets - Inventories)/Current liabilities
(g G — 710 i B A

Net borrowing/Shareholders’ funds
BRI 22

Gross profit/Turnover

TA,

Net profit for the year/Turnover
CRESY I il

Net profit for the year/Average shareholders’ equity

A BEAER] 2 IR
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Chairman’s Statement = Jif #i 45 &

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the "Board”) of China
Gas Holdings Limited ("China Gas” or the "Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”), | would like to
present fo the shareholders the 2005 annual report.

Undoubtedly, 2004 was an unprecedented and developing
year for China Gas. We owe our success to the effort made
by the Directors, the management and the staff of China
Gas and the strong growth in the natural gas business in
China. Our success has not merely been a matter of being
in the right place at the right time. The strategic investments
we made in our infrastructure over the past two financial
years have positioned China Gas as one of the major
players in China’s natural gas market. We commit to make
these long-term investments benefit to our shareholders.

Our financial results were promising. For the financial year
ended March 31, 2005, turnover amounted fo
HK$410,202,000, profit aftributable to shareholders was HKS
132,249,000 and earnings per share was HK7.17 cents,
accumulated connected domestic households were 411,064
households and accumulated connected industrial and
commercial customers were 524 users. The Group’s total
sales of natural gas reached 37,099,520 m? for the period
under review.

Given the cash need for confinual business expansion, the
Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended March 31, 2005.

During the period, the Group had already secured 14 new
pipeline natural gas projects. Among them, the largest and
the most significant project is the one located in Jiangbei
district, Nanjing city, Jiangsu province. This is the Group’s first
natural gas project to have ifs investment in such sizable city
and this is also the first project of which ifs licence to
operate pipelined gas was granted through open tendering.
We are pleased that China Gas was being recognized as
one of the major players in the natural gas industry in
China.
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Market capitalization of the Company was doubled since
the last financial year. Shareholding structure of the
Company also has a new era. Hai Xia Finance Holdings
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of Strait Taiwan Affair
Office becomes the largest shareholder of the Company
follow by Sinopec Corp. and GAIL (India) Limited. Both
Sinopec Corp. and GAIL (India) Limited are well-known
international natural gas investors and they subscribed the
shares of the Company in late 2004 and early 2005
respectively. In addition, the Company also signed a
strategic co-operation agreement with Sinopec Corp. for
comprehensive cooperation in the areas of natural gas
exploration and extraction, transportation and trading,
purchases and supplies, natural gas projects investment, the
construction and operation of urban gas pipeline network
and information and human resources exchange. In mid-
2004, the Company had signed a memorandum of
understanding with Gazprom, a Russian open joinf-stock
company and is the largest gas producing company in the
world. In early 2005, the Company had signed two
memorandum of understanding with City Gas Pte. Ltd and
Korea Gas Corporation respectively in respect of a number
of strategic and business cooperation opportunities
between the parties. We did position ourselves as one of the
important player in piped natural gas network in Asia and
our strategic moves attracted international attention and
most importantly, this enable our Group moves toward
international.

As concluded, we are excited by the future because we
have our position in the China’s natural gas market. In future,
we will continue to drive China Gas’s growth. We will
upgrade our fechnological capability, advance our
management and technological skill and strengthen our
competitiveness in the natural gas market in China. We look
forward to the Group’s earning ability to be further
strengthened, market sharing to be further increased and
revenue to be further broadened. Finally, we thank for our
shareholders for their faithfully support; our staff, the
management team and the fellow board members for their
endeavors and dedication; investors and bankers for their
ongoing support and confidence.

Li Xiao Yun
Chairman

July 8, 2005
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Operational Statistics =
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N, (— ),
Natural Gas Network X #& 5 43t g 48 %
TN A YZNRE b= R
Accumulated
Accumulated  Connected
Connectable  Connected  Industrial and
Total Urban Domestic Domestic Commercial
Province Operational Location Population  Population Household Households* Users*
R EER 2 EEH
] EEHE PNn| mEAR AEREEEF FTEEF IBXRAF
Auhui %% Wuhu (i) 2,190,000 650,000 203,000 116,632 311
uhui 24 Huainan (3 1) 2,065,000 1,090,000 341,000 53,368 1
Shouxian (7 %) 1,270,000 150,000 47,000 = =
Suzhou (15 1) 5,707,000 425,000 133,000 13,393 11
Wuhusxian (% i #%) 530,000 80,000 25,000 = =
Nanlingxian (% bz 5%) 540,000 125,000 39,000 - -
Huoshanxian (% 1L %) 540,000 80,000 25,000 - -
Fengtaixian (B & #) 580,000 90,000 28,000 = =
A8 Yichang (H &) 3,990,000 1,209,000 378,000 66,925 91
Hubei i it Xigogan (%) 883.000 230,000 72.000 22.279 1
Hanchuan (i )1) 1,061,000 173,000 54,000 15,737
Yingcheng (HE %) 669,000 175,000 55,000 15,450
Yunmeng (Z#) 579,000 94,000 29,000 11,987
Suizhou (ki) 2,580,000 782,000 244,000 28,684 -
Tianmen (K f4) 1,740,000 200,000 63,000 - -
Dangyang (%) 560,000 140,000 44,000 = =
Guangshui (J&7k) 899,000 125,000 39,000 - -
Hunani#i /@ Yiyang (#H) » Yuanjian (L) 4,600,000 860,000 269,000 30,237 =
Jiangsu ;L Pizhou (HJH) 1,580,000 230,000 72,000 7,166 -
9 L& Yangzhong (#; 1) 273,000 88,000 28,000 9.283 48
Jiang Bei District, Nanjing 1,200,000 650,000 203,000 = =
(P VL 3 )
Jiawang District, Xuzhou M T TE 1) 500,000 180,000 56,000 - -
Xinyi, Xuzhou (%M # It 970,000 160,000 50,000 - -
Zhejianag3ff 5T Xiaoshan district, Hangzhou (5t i # 1L1) 1,157,000 280,000 88,000 = =
ejiangiif Shaoxingxian (44 BL&) 710,000 110,000 34,000 = =
Hebei o it Cangzhou (/M) 6,670,000 470,000 147,000 = =
Cangzhou Economic
Development Zone
(U 468 375 B 5 [ ) 20,000 20,000 6,000 131 1
Nanpixian (# % #) 760,000 152,000 48,000 - -
Qinghexian (i 1 #2) 340,000 72,000 23,000 - -
Zunhua (k) 5,760,000 1,051,000 329,000 19,792 50
Letingxian (4 52 #%)
Xinle (i 4)
Gaocheng (#ilik)
Pingshanxian (+F i )
Feng Nan district
of Tangshan city (11 & # &)
Neigiuxian (4 F85)
Longyaoxian ([ &%)
Xmgfongxlon( 178 5%)
Lingshouxian (% 7 %)
Guqngxi Yulin (E#) 5,760,000 400,000 125,000 - -
Zhucmg Qinzhou (£kJH) 3,260,000 220,000 69,000 = =
Autonomous
Region
BREAKAR
&
Shaanxi B 7  Xi'an National Hi-Tech
Industrial Development Zone
(178 2 1 47 5 1 7 3 B 3 1) 20,000 20,000 6,000 - -
Beijing 1t 3 Changping district (& &) 4,419,000 2,594,000 811,000 - -
Daxing district (K B &)
Yanging district (% B [&)
Tongzhou district (i Jif &)
Shunyi district (2 &)
Fangshan district (5 1l &)
Guangdong Maoming (%4) 6,700,000 1,200,000 375,000 - -
BR
* as af March 31, 2005
WE-ZZHE=ZA=1—H




11

ANNUAL REPORT 2005




4« 2 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion

and Analysis & & 2 &5 M 20 i

China’s demand for energy is increasing as the Chinese
economy enters a new era of high-speed development. In
2003, China surpassed Japan to become the second largest
petroleum consumer only after the USA. China’s petroleum
consumption accounted for 23% of its consumption
composition of disposable energy, while coal consumption
even took up 66% of its consumption composition of
disposable energy. However, since it becomes more difficult
fo raise output now due to the increasing difficulty in the
exploitation of some oil fields in China, coupled with the
rising intfernational crude oil prices recently, these have
created an impact on the Chinese economic development
fo a certain extent, while China’s over relionce upon coals
has given rise to not only a serious environmental pollution
problem but also a major risk involved during the
exploitation of resources. Thus, China’s defective energy
composition has drawn growing concerns.

The Chinese Government is mapping out a medium and
long-term development plan for the natural gas industry fo
further accelerate the exploration, development and
utilization of nature gas, and to optimize the energy
composition for the security of the country’s energy. In ifs
sustainable development strategies, the Chinese
Government has proposed an adjustment to the energy
consumption composition, and the development and
utilization of recyclable energy and new energy sources. This
has offered a precious opportunity for the development of
the natural gas industry, in particular, the downstream
natural gas distribution business.

The Group moved into the urban gas distribution market in
2002, and since then it has been fully leveraging on the
precious opportunity of China’s move fto open the
downstream natural gas distribution market to foreign
investors by faking a proactive approach to developing
urban natural gas projects in China, with the success in
securing a lot of franchised urban gas projects, resulting in a
rapid growth in the development of the Group’s business.
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TH 2 &M > B8R T T P2 e JRRRT RE VR > &
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Business Review

For the year ended March 31, 2005, furnover of the Group
amounted fo HK$410,202,000 (year ended March 31, 2004:
HK$376,491,000). Profit attributable to the shareholder was
HK$132,249,000 (year ended March 31, 2004:
HK$80,060,000). Earnings per share was HK7.17 cents (year
ended March 31, 2004: HK6.15 cents).

New Projects Developments

In order to further develop the Group’s business, during the
financial year, the Group actively developed new projects in
the central eastern part of China and achieved excellent
results. We have secured 14 city piped gas projects (with
exclusive operating rights) and one natural gas long
distance pipeline project. The Group further secured 8 city
piped gas projects (with exclusive operating rights) after the
financial year. As at June 30, 2005, the Group secured the
exclusive operating rights of city piped gas projects in 43
cities and distfricts across 9 provinces and two natural gas
long distance pipeline projects.

The Group has obtained the following city piped gas
projects during the financial year:

Anhui Suzhou city, Shouxian, Wuhuxian

Hebei Cangzhou city, Nanpixian,
Qinghexian, Lingshouxian

Henan Yuanjian city

Jiangsu Jiangbei district of Nanjing city

Guangxi Zhuang Qinzhou city, Yulin city

Autonomous Region

Shaanxi Xi‘an National Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone

Hubei Tianmen city

Zhejiang Xiaoshan district of

Hangzhou city

S5 (]
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Management Discussion

and Analysis & &

The Group has obtained the following new natural gas long
distance pipeline projects during the financial year:

Hubei Zhijiang — Dangyang long
distance gas pipeline

The Group has obtained the following city piped gas
projects after the financial year:

Anhui Nanlingxian, Huoshanxian,
Fengtaixian

Zhejiang Xiaoxingxian

Jiangsu Jiawang district of Xuzhou city,
Xinyi city

Guangdong Maoming city

Hubei Guangshui city

As at the year 2004, the above projects were intended to
serve the gas connectable population of approximately
14,575,000 (approximately 4,555,000 households). As
compared with the gas connectable population of
9,060,000 last year (approximately 2,831,000 households),
representing an increase of 60.9%.

The standards for urban economic development and
industrial scale of the projects which the Group secured this
year have increased remarkably over those of previous years.
In January this year, the Group succeeded in bidding for the
piped gas project in the Jiangbei District, Nanjing. In March,
it also secured the piped gas project in the Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou. The Jiangbei District in Nanjing and the Xiaoshan
District in Hangzhou are the two districts where Nanjing's
and Hangzhou's industrial users are densely populated, thus
offering bright prospects for natural gas consumption. The
success in securing the Nanjing and Hangzhou projects
demonstrates the enhanced competitive edge of the Group
and the government’s frust in the Group.
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Construction of Piped Gas Networks

Construction of city gas pipeline networks, through which to
distribute natural gas, is one of the Group’s principal
businesses. The Group builds city main pipeline network and
branch pipeline network fo make gas connection to resident
users and industrial and commercial users, and charges
from them gas connection fee and gas usage fee.

During the financial year, the Group completed 12
processing stations, 12 gas pressure regulating stations and
built high-pressure gas pipelines of 283 km, city medium to
low pressure gas pipelines of approximately 541 km and
branch and customer pipeline network of 710 km.

Natural gas projects in Wuhu, Huainan, Suzhou, Yichang,
Suizhou, Xiaogan, Yingcheng, Yumeng, Hanchuen and
Dangyang invested by the Group commenced operation. In
particular, it took only three months that Dangyang’s project
completed 54 km high-pressure pipelines and its related
facilities and put it into commercial production. It served as
a miracle for completing projects fo the industrial players in
China and valuable experience for the Group to build and
manage long distance pipeline projects. As at March 31,
2005, the total number of completed city piped gas reached
19 cities.

As at March 31, 2005, the Group accumulated 18 processing
stations, high-pressure gas pipelines of 617 km, city medium
to low pressure gas pipelines of approximately 1,109 km and
branch and customer pipeline network of 2,025 km.
Designed daily gas supply capacity of processing stations is
5,223,140 cubic meters/day.
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Management Discussion

and Analysis & &

Domestic Customers

The rapid development of the Chinese economy and the
changes in industrial structure have resulted in substantial
labour forces switching from the rural areas to the urban
districts. With the increasing percentage of urban population
in China, cities’” demand for energy is expected fo grow
sharply. Besides, given that the environmental issue has
sparked popular concerns in many countries around the
world, environmental profection has become part of China'’s
primary national policy. Local governments are taking a
proactive approach fo formulating and improving specific
measures for environmental protection. The use of clean
energy, with natural gas as the principal source, will
undoubtedly bring about a positive impact on
environmental protection. In comparison with coal, coal gas
and liquefied petroleum gas, natural gas is the top priority
as a safe and environmental friendly energy source for
residential users. With the accelerated process of
urbanization and increased income levels of urban residents
in China, more and more urban residents will be able to use
clean and highly efficient natural gas.

During the financial year, the Group completed natural gas
connections for 132,309 domestic households, an increase
of 50.47% compared fo the same period of last year. The
Group acquired 11,763 domestic households during the
financial year. As at March 31, 2005, the Group accumulated
connected domestic households reached 411,064
households, an increase of 53.96% compared to last year,
representing 9.02% of the total gas connectable domestic
households. During the financial year, the average
connection fee paid by domestic households was RMB2,217.
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Industrial and Commercial Customers

Industrial users mainly use natural gas as the fuels or raw
materials. Industrial and commercial users use gas much
more than residential users. As the increasing international
crude oil prices in recent years has led to rising prices of
petrol, diesel and heavy oil, while the stringent Chinese
environmental protection legislation and sftrengthened
regulation of small coal mines have resulted in a short
supply of coals in China and rising coal prices, more and
more industrial and commercial users have switched to the
use of clean and highly efficient natural gas to save their
production costs.

During the financial year, the Group completed natural gas
connections for 46 industrial and commercial customers
and acquired 171 industrial and commercial customers. As
at March 31, 2005, the Group accumulated connected
industrial and commercial customer reached 524 users. The
connection fee for industrial and commercial customers was
calculated based on the contracted capacity in average of
RMB50 per cubic meter per day and average connection
fee paid by industrial and commercial customers was
RMB110,673 per customer.

Connection fee represented approximately 71% to the
Group'’s total turnover during the year.

Sale of Piped Gas

Connection fee is a one-off income, whereas the Group’s
ultimate profit comes from the sales income of piped gas.
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During the financial year, natural gas sales from the
companies in Wuhu, Yichang, Suizhou, Xiaogan, Huainan
and Beijing Xiangke were recorded. The Group sold in total
37,099,520 m® of natural gas of which 9,666,920 m?® to
domestic customers, 24,736,000 m? to industrial users and
2,707,600 m?® to commercial users and recorded natural gas
sales income of HK$76,218,000, representing approximately
19% of the Group's total turnover for the year. The natural gas
sales income was approximately 140% higher than that of
the same period last year.

As at March 31, 2005, actual usage for domestic customers
was approximately 52,700 m3/day, the scale of actual daily
usage for industrial customers was approximately 286,900
m3/day, the scale of actual usage for commercial customers
was approximately 63,600 m*/day. Average selling price
(including tax) was RMB2.21 per cubic meter for domestic
customers, RMB1.82 per cubic meter for industrial customers,
RMB2.34 per cubic meter for commercial customers.

During the financial year, piped coal gas sales from Wuhu
Zhongran and Yichang Zhongran was recorded while piped
LPG sales income was recorded from Yangzhong Zhongran,
Suzhou Zhongran and Huainan Zhongran. A total of
39,183,390 cubic meters of coal gas and LPG was sold
during the financial year of which 27,063,120 cubic meters
of coal gas and LPG to domestic customers and 2,783,270
cubic meters of coal gas and LPG to industrial customers
and 9,337,000 cubic meters of coal gas and LPG to
commercial customers. Income from coal gas and LPG was
HK$27,625,000, representing approximately 6.7% to the
Group’s total furnover.
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Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin

During the financial year, the Group realized revenue of
HK$410,202,000 (2004: HK$376,491,000) and gross profit of
HK$247,116,000 (2004: HK$168,410,000), representing 60% of
the Group’s overall gross profit margin (2004: 45%). The
Group realized net profit of HK$132,249,000 (2004:
HK$80,060,000), representing an overall net profit margin of
32% (2004: 21%).

Attracting strategic shareholders to enhance
competitiveness

During the financial year, the Group made a big move by
bringing in one of the three major petroleum companies in
China, Sinopec Corporation and India’s largest natural gas
operator, GAIL (India) Limited as the Group's strategic
shareholders. The Group and Sinopec Corporation will have
full strategic cooperation in the exploration and exploitation
of natural gas, fransportation trade, procurement and
supply, investment in long distance natural gas transmission
pipelines, investment in the consfruction and operation of
urban gas pipe networks, information exchange and human
resources for the joint development of China’s rapid-growing
and huge natural gas market. Sinopec’s involvement in the
Group as a strategic shareholder will enable the Group’s
downstream gas distribution business to secure a strong
support from the upstream and midstream manufacturers.
The Group has also entered info an agreement with GAIL for
the joint development of CNG automobile gassing business
in China. The Group’s cooperation with experienced GAIL in
this potential market will enable GAIL to become a new
business growth point of the Group.
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In addition, the Group has also entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement with the world’s largest
natural gas company Gazprom, the world’s largest LNG
business operator Korea Gas Corporafion and Asia’s most
long-standing company City Gas Pte Ltd.. These international
energy companies have all indicated their intfention to join
the Group as strategic shareholders and fo carry out full
cooperatfion with the Group in their respective areas where
they have competitive edges.

The Group believes that bringing in strategic shareholders
will not only be able to secure the financial support which
the Group is in urgent need for the development of its
natural gas business, but also be able to rapidly raise the
Group'’s technical, operation and management standards in
all areas of natural gas, which in turn will be a great benefit
fo the Company’s speedy development. Building up a
company background with international shareholders will
enable the Company to develop ifself in future into an
energy corporation that focuses on the natural gas business
and has international competitiveness and an ever-lasting
brand.

Establishing a safety operation and management system

The Group is engaged in public utilities by transmitting clean
energy sources to numerous residents as well as industrial,
commercial and corporate users. Hence, the Group is fully
aware that safety operation is vital to the Group’s business.
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During the financial year, a HSE Safety Management

Department was partficularly set up in accordance with the
requirements of the industry’s international standards, and
subsequently further improvements were made to the
Group’s safety management manual in line with the Group's
actual circumstances and in combination with the safety
operation standards of the international energy industry, and
fraining was provided to all project companies of the Group
in accordance with the new standards. Immediately after
the fraining, an inspection was carried out on a regular
basis to identify, on a fimely basis, safety problems of the
project companies arising during project construction,
production and operation, and to urge these companies to
make improvements in accordance with the new standards.

Improvements have also been made to the safety
management network within the Group, and for this purpose
a safety production committee has been set up, comprising
members from the senior management of the Group’s head
office and general managers of the project companies
under the Group. The HSE Safety Management Department
will convene meetings on a regular basis to assess and
inspect safety management and draw conclusions thereon,
and to fully implement the Group’s measures in all areas of
safety production, operation and management.

Human Resources

The Group’s development relies upon the retention and
education of talented people. Only with competent and
high quality staff can the Group’'s competitiveness be
secured completely. The Group is committed to the “people-
centered” business concept. It has carried out a lot of
measures for attracting and fraining talented people in the
areas below.
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The Group has set up HEME LRBRIEMBFERE (Gas
Technology Research Institute of China Gas and HIT) and &
TR ke B pF i (Production Research Base of HIT and
China Gas) with W& T3¥ KE (Harbin Institute of
Technology), a Chinese domestic university which is the
strongest in the gas discipline. This is the first time for the
Group fo join hands with a Chinese domestic university to
set up the research institutes. Harbin Institute of Technology
is the first institution in China that runs the gas discipline,
and is stronger in research and advantage in the area of
natural gas fransmission and distribution. The establishment
of the Gas Technology Research Institute of China Gas and
HIT and the Production Research Base of HIT and China Gas
will be beneficial to the Group’s education and training of
various gas technicians and management staff, and
enhancement of the standards for its construction, operation
and management of urban natural gas projects.
Furthermore, the Group is negotiating with Harbin Institute of
Technology about assigning the Group as " & T 2 K2R R
-+ T/EW B (Post-doctorate Gas Work Mobile Station of
Harbin Institute of Technology), W # i& T 3 K 6 58 A4 TR E0Y
i (Fieldwork Station for Post-graduates of Harbin Institute of
Technology) and I & T3 K8 AR A4 BB S (Fieldwork
Station for Undergraduates of Harbin Institute of Technology).
In this way, the Group is also able fo attract oufstanding
graduates trained from that university every year. At present,
there is a bafch of outstanding people with doctorate and
master degree stationed at the work station of the Group.
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The Group has established a system for providing general

fraining, on-the-job training and senior management
training. Through general training, each new staff member,
upon joining the Group, will be able to understand the
Group’s fundamental concept, management concept,
corporate culture, business and technical procedures,
primary codes, efc.. On-the-job training will enable
professional technicians and operators to acquire
professional operating skills, updates of gas technology
development, new technology and methods in accordance
with the Group’s requirements and standards. For this
purpose, an in-house ftraining base has been set up
particularly and a detailed plan formulated for offering on-
the-job training on a shift basis. Training for senior
management is carried out mainly through the Production
Research Base of HIT and China Gas. By providing fraining to
the senior management of the Group’s head office and its
subsidiaries, the senior management will be able to broaden
their perspectives, renew and enrich their knowledge base
and further raise their management standards.

As at March 31, 2005, the Group has approximately 1,750
employees, representing a decrease of approximately 16%
over last year. The decrease was mainly atftributable to the
layout of staff from the Group as a result of re-organization of
positioning and systems. Remuneration is determined by
reference fo their qualifications and experiences of the staff
concerned and according to the prevailing indusfry
practice in the respective regions in which it operates.
Beside the basic salaries and pension fund, some
employees are entitfled fo discretionary bonuses, merit
payment and share options which depend on the
performances of individual employee. Share options were
granted tfo eligible staff in this financial year.
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Natural Gas Joint Venture Companies

Anhui Province
The Group currently has operations in Wuhu city, Huainan
city, Suzhou city, Wuhuxian and Shouxian, Auhui Province.

As at March 31, 2005, completed facilities in Wuhu Zhongran
included pipelines of approximately 980 km (approximately
557 km belongs to branch and customer pipeline network),
an increase of 22.96% compared to the last financial year.
Accumulated connected domestic households reached
116,632 households and accumulated connected industrial
and commercial customers was 311 users, an increase of
approximately 16.7% and 5.1% respectively. As at March 31,
2005, contribution from Wuhu Zhongran accounted for 17.8%
of the Group’s turnover.

Wuhuxian Zhongran is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group and established in January 2005 and is in its stage of
preparation of construction works. As at March 31, 2005, no
contribution was recorded.

As at March 31, 2005, completed facilities in Huainan
Zhongran included pipelines of approximately 437 km
(approximately 292 km belongs to branch and customer
pipeline network), an increase of 22.25% compared to the
last financial year. Accumulated connected domestic
households reached 53,368 households and accumulated
industrial and commercial customers reached 11 users, an
increase of approximately 15.1% and 175% respectively.
Contribution from Huainan Zhongran accounted for 6.0% of
the Group’s turnover for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Shouxian Zhongran is a 90% owned subsidiary of the Group
and established in October 2004 and in its stage of
preparation of construction works. As at March 31, 2005, no
contribution was recorded.
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Suzhou city has a total population of 5,930,000 of whom

452,000 resided in the urban areas. The Group owned 75% in
Suzhou Zhongran. As at March 31, 2005, completed facilities
in Suzhou Zhongran included pipelines of approximately 59
km (approximately 40 km belongs to branch and customer
pipeline network). Accumulated connected domestic
households was 13,393 households and accumulated
connected industrial and commercial customers was 11
users. Conftribution from Suzhou Zhongran accounted for
5.9% of the Group’s turnover for the year ended March 31,
2005.

Hubei Province

The Group currently has operations in Yichang city, Xiaogan
city, Hanchuan city, Yingcheng city, Yunmeng city, Suizhou
city, Tianmen city and Dangyang city, Hubei Province.

As at March 31, 2005, Yichang Zhongran had completed
facilities included 573 km pipelines (approximately 244 km
belongs to branch and customer pipeline network).
Accumulated connected domestic households reached
66,925 households and accumulated connected industrial
and commercial customers was 91 users. Contribution from
Yichang Zhongran accounted for 3.6% of the Group's
turnover for the year ended March 31, 2005.

As at March 31, 2005, the joint venfure companies of
Xiaogan, Hanchuan, Yingcheng, Yunmeng and Xiaogan
Zenrong had completed facilities included pipelines of
approximately 889 km (approximately 370 km belongs to
branch and customer pipeline network). Accumulated
connected domestic households was 65,453 households
and accumulated connected industrial and commercial
customer was 1 user. Contribution from the five joint venture
companies accounted for 21% of the Group’s turnover for
the year ended March 31, 2005.
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As at March 31, 2005, Suizhou Zhongran completed facilities
included pipelines of approximately 157 km (approximately
116 km belongs to branch and customer pipeline network)
as at March 31, 2005. Accumulated connected domestic
households was 28,684 households. Contribution from
Suizhou Zhongran accounted for 11.2% of the Group's
furnover for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Tianman Zhongran is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Tianman has a total population of 1,600,000 of whom
400,000 resided in the urban areas. Tianman Zhongran was
in its stage of establishment during the financial year ended
March 31, 2005.

Dangyang Zhongran is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Dangyang has a tofal population of 560,000 of whom
140,000 resided in the urban areas. As at 31 March 2005, no
contribution was recorded.

Hunan Province
The Group currently has operation in Yiyang city and
Yuanjian city, Hunan Province.

As at March 31, 2005, Yiyang Zhongran had completed
facilities included pipelines of approximately 301 km
(approximately 272 km belongs to branch and customer
pipeline network). Accumulated connected domestic
households was 30,237 households. Contribution from Yiyang
Zhongran accounted for 10.4% of the Group’s turnover for
the year ended March 31, 2005.

Jiangsu Province
The Group currently has operation in Pizhou city, Yangzhong
city and Jiang Bei District of Nanjing city, Jiangsu Province.

As at March 31, 2005, Pizhou Zhongran completed facilities
included pipelines of approximately 22 km and
accumulated connected domestic households was 7,166
households. Contribution from Pizhou Zhongran accounted
for 3.4% of the Group's turnover for the year ended March 31,
2005.
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As at March 31, 2005, Yangzhong Zhongran completed

facilities included pipelines of approximately 86 km
(approximately 29 km belongs to branch and customer
pipeline network) and accumulated connected domestic
households was 9,283 households and accumulated
connected industrial and commercial customers was 48
users. Contribution from Yangzhong Zhongran accounted for
1.9% of the Group’s turnover for the year ended March 31,
2005.

In January 2005, the Group was granted the licence for a
period of 30 years to operate the piped gas for the Jiang Bei
District of Nanjing City, the PRC. Nanjing Zhongran is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company with registered capital of
US$24,180,400 and was duly set up in June 2005. Nanjing
city is the capital of Jiangsu Province and Jiang Bei district
of Nanjing city includes Luhe district and Pukou district and
the area of which covers more than 50% of the Nanjing city.
The planned population of this area is about 3.6 million.
Pukou district is an important strategic development area
and is planned to be a luxury residential area and high
technology development zone while Luhe district is a major
area for petroleum chemical industry for Nanjing city.

Zhejiang Province

The Group currently has its investments in Xicoshan District
of Hangzhou city, Zhejiang Province.

In March 2005, the Group signed a cooperation agreement
with People’s Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou city
to establish a wholly owned subsidiary to be named
Hangzhou Zhongran and was granted an exclusive licence
to operate natural gas projects in Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou city for a term of 30 years. Hangzhou Zhongran
will have its registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. As of March 31, 2005,
Hangzhou Zhongran was in the process of establishment.
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Hebei Province

Beijing Zhongran Xiangke Oil Gas Technology Co. Ltd
("Beijing Zhongran Xiangke”) is the Group’s 60% owned joint
venture company and is principally engaged in sale of
compressed natural gas to domestic households and
industrial around sub-urban areas of Beijing and part of sub-
urban areas in Hebei Province and Tianjin. As at March 31,
2005, Beijing Zhongran Xiangke owned 13 wholly-owned
subsidiaries, exclusive piped gas operating rights in ten cities
and districts including Zunhua, Neigiuxian, Letingxian City,
Xinle, Gaocheng, Pingshanxian, Fengnan district of
Tangshan, Lingshouxian, Longyaoxian and Xingtangxian of
Hebei Province. As at March 31, 2005, Beijing Zhongran
Xiangke had completed facilities included pipelines of
approximately 185 km (approximately 85 km belongs to
branch and customer pipeline network). Accumulated
connected natural gas domestic customers was 19,792
households and accumulated connected industrial and
commercial customers reached 50 users, an increase of
81.23% and 600% compared to last financial year. Turnovers
of Beijing Zhongran Xiangke represented 18.5% of the
Group’s total turnover for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Besides Beijing Zhongran Xiangke, the Group currently has
operation in Cangzhou City. Cangzhou Economic and
Technology Development Zone, Nanpixian and Qinghexian,
Hebei Province.

Cangzhou Zhongran, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group was established in October 2004 and was granted a
30-years exclusive operating rights to operate natural gas
project in Cangzhou Economic and Technology
Development Zone. As at March 31, 2005, accumulated
connected domestic households was 131 households and
accumulated connected industrial and commercial
customer was 1 user.
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In October 2004, the Group signed a joint venture

agreement with Cangzhou Municipal Government for the
establishment of a joint venture company fo operate natural
gas project in Cangzhou city. The joint venture company will
have a registered capital of RMB50,000,000 and total
investment of RMB150,000,000 and the Group would have
70% inferest in the joint venture company. Cangzhou city is
located in south-east of Hebei Province comprising two
direct governance districts and ten counties. It has a total
population of approximately 6,770,000. The joint venture
company of Cangzhou city is under the stage of
establishment as at March 31, 2005.

Nanpixian is located in south-east part of Hebei Province
and has a fotal area of 800 square miles with fotal
population of 360,000 of whom 50,000 resided in the urban
areas. Nanpi Zhongran was established in October 2004. As
at March 31, 2005, no contribution was recorded from Nanpi
Zhongran.

Qinghexian is located in south-east part of Hebei Province
and has a total area of 502 square miles with total
population of 360,000 of whom 40,000 resided in the urban
areas. As at March 31, 2005, Qinghexian Zhongran was
under the stage of establishment.

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

The Group currently has its investment in Yulin city and
Qinzhou city, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region.

Yulin city is located in south-east part of Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region and has a total area of 12,800 square
miles with total population of 5,400,000 of whom 400,000
resided in the urban areas. As at March 31, 2005, Yulin
Zhongran was in the process of establishment.

AR A A AR 4R B M T BUR R
VREAFABTEEMGE > SEAFEERE
MR RRFIHE - &R AN GEMEA L
ANRH50008C BBEEEHS AR
150,000,0007C ° F &2 ml i A5 B A7 70%HE
o YT LA T AL B AR o 45 A
[ K A SR - NI A A 16,770,000\ - £
EOERREZHA =4 —H BT EELA
T3 AE AL H o

R SR L T L & R R A AR T AR 800-°F U7
B NOA36E N - B A58 A JE A I T H
[ o PR R A F A A H R o E
FERFE=ZA=Z+—H > BRI RA M
K -

T VTR A A T L R R H A 5027 5
NI #3608 N o o & 48 N i 3 T b o
WEZEHRAEZA =+ —H > Fih R0
BT H e

i PSR 36

A 45 B F AR B PR [ 6 AR R BN T

CAHE -

T iz A B P SR I R R D o TR .28
OB > EARTHT A A5408 A > E 408
NEpRhit e - 2 —FFHFE=H=1+—
H o> B AR AR o e

29



30

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion

and Analysis & &

Qinzhou city is located along the coastal of the southern
part of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and has a total
area of 10,800 square miles with total population of
3,300,000 of whom 220,000 resided in the urban areas.
Qinzhou Zhongran was established in January 2005 and is
wholly owned by the Group. As at March 31, 2005, no
confribution was recorded.

Shaanxi Province
This is the first time of the Group to have its investment in
Shaanxi province.

A cooperation agreement was entered into between the
Company and Xi‘an National Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone Administrative Committee for the establishment of Xi‘an
Zhongran, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, to
operate natural gas project in Xi'an National Hi-Tech
Aviation Development Zone and the new development zones
around X'ian National Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone
in November 2004. Xi‘an Zhongran was in the process of
establishment as at March 31, 2005.

Beijing

Following the cooperation agreement entered into between
the Company and dt i #A% & M A IR AL A | (Beijing Gas
Group Company Limited) ("Beijing Gas Group”) in May 2004,
a joint venture company namely Beijing Jinggang Gas
Development Company Limited ("Beijing Jinggang”) was
formed by the Company and Beijing Gas Group in January
2005. Beijing Jinggang has a registered capital of
RMB30,000,000 and was owned as to 49% by the Company
and 51% by Beijing Gas Group and it will operate natural
gas projects in the suburb areas including six districts in
Beijing and the relevant exclusive operating rights are under
the process of application.
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Other events

In March 2005, the Group, through its subsidiaries, signed a
cooperation agreement with People’'s Government of
Nanlingxian, Anhui province for the establishment of a wholly
owned subsidiary namely Nanlingxian Zhongran and will
have a registered capital of RMB10,000,000.

In April 2005, the Group, through its subsidiaries, signed a
cooperation agreement with People’'s Government of
Guangshui city for the establishment of a wholly owned
subsidiary namely Guangshui Zhongran and will have a
registered capital of HK$7,500,000.

In April 2005, the Group, through its subsidiaries, signed a
joint venture agreement with %8 BLER e [0 558 & 45 28 A SRR PR 2
f] (Shaoxing County China Qing Fang City Piped Gas
Company Limited) ("China Qing Fang City") for the
establishment of Shaoxing Zhongran to be engaged in the
natural gas project in Shaoxing, Zhejiang province with
exclusive rights for the operation of the piped gas business
for 30 years. Shaoxing Zhongran will have a registered
capital of RMB70,000,000 and owned as to 55% by the Group
and 45% by China Qing Fang City.

In April 2005, the Group signed a cooperation agreement with
J& 3R A % 4 @& 8% R (Maoming  City Construction Bureau,
Guangdong province) for the establishment of a wholly-
owned subsidiary by the Company namely Maoming
Zhongran to operate natural gas project in Maoming city,
Guangdong province. Maoming Zhongran will have a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000.
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In May 2005, the Group, through its subsidiaries, signed <&M
T WA SORI T AR A H A 5 A ) (Operation Agreement of
Exploitation of Natural Gas Construction Project of Jiawang
district, Xuzhou city) with People’s Government of Jiawang
district, Xuzhou city, Jiangsu province and G it i & F A L
FEIE H #8477 ) (Operation Agreement of Exploitation of
Natural Gas Construction Project of Xinyi city) with People’s
Government of Xinyi city, Jiangsu province for the
establishment of two wholly owned subsidiaries in Jiawang
district, Xuzhou city and Xinyi city namely Xuzhou Zhongran
and Xinyi Zhongran respectively and with registered capital
of RMB10,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 respectively.

In May 2005, the Group, through its subsidiaries, signed two
cooperation agreements in Fengtaixian and Huoshanxian,
Anhui province for the establishment of two wholly owned
subsidiaries in Fengtaixian and Huoshanxian namely
Fengtaixian Zhongran and Huoshanxian Zhongran
respectively and with registered capital each of
RMB5,000,000.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at March 31, 2005, the audited total assets of the Group
was HK$2,750,723,000, increased by approximately 105% as
compared to March 31, 2004.

As at March 31, 2005, cash on hand was HK$695,389,000
(March 31, 2004: HK$471,823,000). The Group's total bank and
other borrowings amounted to HK$1,323,446,000 (March 31,
2004: HK$591,719,000) of which approximately 13.1%, 5.5%,
31.7% and 49.7% would be due within one year, from first to
second year, from second to fifth year and after the fifth year,
respectively.
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The Group has a current ratio of approximately 3.15 (March
31, 2004: 2.65) and the net gearing ratio was 0.81 (March 31,
2004: 0.4).The calculation of net gearing ratio was based on
the net borrowings of HK$797,073,000 (fotal borrowings of
HK$1,492,462,000 less bank balances and cash of
HK$695,389,000) and the net assets of HK$988,541,000 as at
March 31, 2005.

Capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and consfruction materials
contracted for as at March 31, 2005 was HK$661,157,000
(March 31, 2004: HK$572,712,000) and HK$405,968,000
(March 31, 2004: HK$561,696,000) which would require a
substantial use of the Group’s present cash resources and
external funding. The Group has committed to acquire
interests in certain PRC enterprise and to establish certain
Sino-foreign joint venture companies in the PRC.

The Group does not anfticipate any material foreign
exchange exposure since its cash, borrowings, revenue and
expenses are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB.

Capital Structure

During the financial year, the Group obtained various funds
from instfitutions or by placing of shares to strategic investors.

In September 2004, the Company placed a total of
90,000,000 shares at HK$0.52 per share to an independent
investor and the net proceeds of approximately
HK$46,700,000 was received.

In September 2004, the Company entered two warrants
placing agreements with two independent investors for the
placing of a total of 260,000,000 warrants at an issue price
of HK$0.01 per warrant (the "Warrant”). The Warrant has an
initial exercise price of HK$0.66 per share for a period of five
years commencing from the date of issue of the Warrant. As
at March 31, 2005, 170,000,000 Warrants were exercised and
the proceeds from exercising of Warrants HK$112,200,000
were received.
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In October 2004, the Group entered into a repurchase
agreement with Merrill Lynch International for (i) the
repurchase of US$3,500,000 convertible bonds at a
repurchase price of US$3,850,000; and (ii) fo amend the terms
of the remaining outstanding US$3,500,000 convertible bonds
("Outstanding Bonds”). Pursuant fto the terms of the
agreement, the Group has the rights to make cash payment
at 1156% of the principal amount of the Outfstanding Bonds to
Merrill Lynch in full satisfaction of the conversion rights of the
Outstanding Bonds converted. During the financial period
under review, a total of US$2,500,000 of the Outstanding
Bonds was being repurchased by the Group and
US$1,000,000 of the Outstanding Bonds was converted into
ordinary shares of the Group.

On October 31, 2004, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Sinopec Corp for the
subscription of 210,000,000 shares of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$0.61 per share. Net proceeds of
approximately HK$128,000,000 was received.

In February 2005, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with GAIL (India) Limited for the subscription of
210,000,000 shares of the Company at a subscription price
of HK$1.158 per share. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$242,000,000 was received. Completion of the transaction
was taken place in May 2005.

In April 2005, the Company and eleven foreign banks signed
a syndicated loan agreement for a five-year international
syndicated loan in the amount of US$60,000,000. The
syndicated loan was arranged and underwritten by SG,
Commerzbank and OUS fogether with eight other banks
from South Korea, Thailand, Italy, France, Russia, Indonesia
and Hong Kong. This is the first fime the Group had obtained
an unsecured bank loan since engaging in natural gas
business and will mainly be used tfo invest in natural gas
projects and of general working capital.
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In June 2005, a subscription agreement was entered into
among the Group, CQS Convertible and Quantitative
Strategies Master Fund Limited ("CQS") and Courtenay
Enterprise Limited ("Courtenay”) for the subscription of
US$40,000,000 convertible bonds by CQS and Courtenay.
CaS will subscribe for an amount of US$25,000,000 and
Courtenay will subscribe for an amount of US$15,000,000.
The conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$1.731
and the maturity date will be 29 June 2010 with 1 per cent
interest. Net proceeds of approximately HK$301,860,000 will
be applied to the investment of natural gas projects and for
the general working capital of the Group.

Charge on Assets

As at March 31, 2005, the Group pledged part of fixed assets
having a net book value of approximately HK$399,393,000
(March 31, 2004: HK$39,682,000) and certain investments in
subsidiaries fo financial institutions to secure loan facilities
granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at March 31, 2005, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (March 31, 2004: Nil).

Liu Ming Hui
Managing Director

July 8, 2005
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xiao Yun, aged 50, is a Director of the Company since
August 2001 and is appointed as Chairman of the Company
since April 2002. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University in
1979 and has over 23 years experience in economic
management. Mr. Li is the President of Strait Travel Agency.

Mr. Xu Ying, aged 44, is a Director of the Company and is
appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Company since August
2001. Mr. Xu graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University of
Agriculture and Biology. Mr. Xu is the deputy President of
Strait Travel Agency.

Mr. Liu Ming Hui, aged 42, is a Director of the Company since
April 2002 and is appointed as Managing Director of the
Company since July 2002. Mr. Liu received his Bachelor of
Science Degree in Mathematics from Hebei Normal
University in 1984. He had worked in various local
government authorities and Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Ma Jin Long, aged 39, is a Director of the Company since
September 2002. Mr. Ma received his Degree in Economics
from Hebei University and has over 15 years experience in
financial management. Mr. Ma is the Vice President of Beijing
Zhongran Xiangke Oil Gas Technology Company Limited.

Mr. Zhu Wei Wei, aged 33, is a Director of the Company since
September 2002. Mr. Zhu received his Degree of Master in
Finance from Zhong-nan University of Finance & Economic.
Mr. Zhu has over 10 years experience in project
management.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi, aged 49, is a non-executive Director of the
Company since May 2005. Mr. Feng graduated from 15 A R
fifE U M SR B R L B (Artillery College of the People’s Liberation
Army). Mr. Feng is the general manager of Straits Travel
Agency.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Yu Hua, aged 38, appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in November 2002.
Mr. Zhao graduated from Institute of International Economic,
Nankai University and holds a Master’'s Degree in Economic.
He joined J&A Securities Company in 1993, engaging in
corporate financing and advisory business.

Dr. Mao Er Wan, aged 42, appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in January 2003. Dr.
Mao graduated from Mathematics and System Sciences,
Chinese Academy of Sciences and holds a Doctor Degree.
He was the Chief Economist of Da Cheng Fund
Management Co. Ltd. He is currently a professor of School of
International Business, Bejing Foreign Studies University and
a committee member of China Instfitute of Finance, Financial
Engineering.

Ms. Wong Sin Yue Cynthia, aged 53, appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
October 2003. Ms. Wong holds a MBA degree and has over
15 years of investment banking experience. She has worked
at Deutsche Morgan Grenfell and Sociate Generale Hong
Kong and held various senior positions during her services.
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Corporate governance refers to the system by which corporate
affairs are directed and managed. The corporate governance
structure specifies the distribution of rights and responsibilities
among different parficipants in the corporation, such as, the
board, managers, shareholders and other stakeholders, and
clearly defines the rules and procedures for making decisions
on corporate affairs and through monitoring performance to
aftain the Company’s objectives. Fundamentals of good
corporate governance include timely and reliable financial
reporting, fransparent and efficient management.

The Board of Directors (the "Board”) and the management
of China Gas Holdings Limited are committed to high
standards of corporate governance.

Board Matters

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long-term shareholder value. The Board is responsible for
setting overall strategy for the Group, overseeing fthe
businesses and affairs of the Group and monitoring the
performance of the management.

The Board currently consists of nine directors of which five
are executive directors, one is non-executive director and
three are independent non-executive directors. Their names
and positions are as follows:

SEERREEEMERCEFTHIRR - &
AR MR N AR 28 (IR
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FiC - Slf ke 5 R i A ) A 6 2 B TR SR IR 119 R
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H AT EFEUL = A B IFAITE
Hoo PR KA S

Name of Director
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xiao Yun
Mr. Xu Ying

Mr. Liu Ming Hui
Mr. Zhu Wei Wei
Mr. Ma Jin Long

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi

Mr. Zhao Yu Hua

Dr Mao Er Wan

Ms. Wong Sin Yue Cynthia

Position

Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Managing Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Non-Executive

Independent Non-Executive
Independent Non-Executive
Independent Non-Executive
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With one-third of the members of the Board are
independent, the Board is able to exercise independent
judgment on corporate affairs and provide the
management with a diverse and objective perspective on
issues. The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent and each of the
independent non-executive directors has provided an
annual confirmation of his/her independence fo the
Company pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules.

There is a clear separation of the roles and responsibilities of
the Chairman and Managing Director and the two positions
are held by ftwo different members of the Board. The
Chairman, though who is an executive director, is not
responsible for daily business operation but he is responsible
for the Company’s overall strategic planning and to ensure
the effectiveness of the Board. The Managing Director, on the
other hand, is responsible to the daily operation of the
Group and the running of the Group’s business.

Directors are expected fto attend board meetings and
meetings of committees on which they serve and to spend
the time needed and meet as frequently as necessary to
properly discharge their responsibilities. Meeting agenda of
the board meeting or committee meeting is generally
distributed at least seven business days before the meeting
date whereas the relevant board papers are generally
distributed in writing to the directors at least three days in
advance of the meeting for review by the directors. Sensitive
subject matters may be discussed at the meeting without
written materials being distributed in advance or at the
meeting.

New director to the board is provided with appropriate
briefings. In order to ensure our directors to be well-
equipped, the Company is periodically provided materials or
arrange for outside preparation for all directors on subjects
that would assist them in discharging their duties.
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Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting ("AGM"), one-third of the directors shall
retire from the office whilst the Chairman and Managing
Director shall not be subject to retirement by rofation or fo
be taken in deftermining the number of directors to retire in
each year. The retired directors should be those who have
been the longest in the office since their last re-election. New
director appointed by the Board during the year shall hold
office until the next following AGM. The newly appointed
director shall not be taken into account in determining the
number of directors who are to retire by rotation at that AGM.
All retiring directors are eligible for re-election at each AGM
of the Company. Non-executive directors are not appointed
for a fixed term but they are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at AGM in accordance to the Bye-laws of the
Company.

Analysts’ reports and the relevant articles on the Group are
forwarded to the directors on an on-going basis as and
when received. Contacts details of the Group’s senior
management and the company secretary are provided so
as fo facilitate access. Besides, each director has the right to
seek independent professional advice concerning any
aspect of the Group’s operations and undertakings in order
to fulfill their duties and responsibilities as directors. The cost
of such professional advice will be borne by the Company.

In order to ensure that the Board is able to fulfill its
responsibilities, the Board has established and delegated
specific responsibilities to the following committees:

1. Executive Committee
2. Audit Committee
3. Remuneration Committee

Other ad-hoc committees can be formed from time to time
to look into specific areas as and when the need arises.
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The principle functions of each of the above committees are
as follows:

Executive Committee

The executive committee provides overall strategic
direction to the management, to monitor the
operations of all business units and to ensure that
funding is adequate for the Group’s investment
projects. The members of the committee included the
Vice-Chairman, Managing Director and two executive
directors. The committee meets as and when required
to discuss the daily operations and affairs of the
Group. Besides, a committee comprising two of the
executive directors was set up to approve the issue
and allotment of shares under the share option
scheme of the Company when exercise of share
options arose. In order to further assist the executive
committee, sub-committees are formed which
including executive directors and senior
management of which they are performing key
operational and functional areas and they report to
the Managing Director regularly.

Audit Committee

Audit committee consists of all independent non-
executive directors. The main responsibility of the
audit committee is fo review with the external auditors
and the management, the Company’'s general
policies and internal financial control procedures. It
also reviews half-yearly and annual results
announcements as well as the financial statements of
the Group before they are submitted to the Board for
approval. The audit committee also recommends the
appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
external auditors.

The audit commifttee had met two times during the
financial year ended 31 March 2005 to review the
inferim and annual results of the Group.
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3. Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee consists of all
independent non-executive directors and one
executive director. The principal responsibilities of the
remunerafion committee are to approve and fo
recommend to the board the remuneration policy,
compensation policy, structure for directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
such policies. It also ensures that no directors or any
of his/her associates is involved in determining his/
her own remuneration.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Group has adopted Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules.

The Board confirmed that for the financial year ended March
31, 2005, all of the directors of the Company have complied
with the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

Communications with shareholders

The Board is accountable to the Company’s shareholders for
the performance and activities of the Group and is very
much aware of maintaining good relations and
communications with all its shareholders. Information is
communicated to shareholders on a timely basis through
corporate announcements, annual reports, interim reports,
half-year and full-year announcements and circulars. The
Board recognises that the Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
provides a principal forum for dialogue with shareholders.
The notice of the AGM is dispatched to the shareholders of
the Company, together with explanatory notes or a circular
on items of special business, at least 21 calendar days
before the meeting. The Board welcomes questions from
shareholders who have an opportunity fo raise issues either
formally or informally before or at the AGM.
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Separate resolution for each substantially issue, including
the election of director, is proposed at a general meeting.
Details of the poll voting procedures and rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in the
Company'’s circulars.

During the financial year ended 2004, there was no other
significant changes made in the Company's bye-laws
except for those amendments which were in compliance
with the change in Listing Rules and Securities and Future
Ordinance which took effect in April 2004.

Investors Relations

The Board acknowledged the importance to establish good
relationship with analysts and investors. The Company has
established a channel for communication with institutional
investors and analysts. During the financial year, there are
regular site visits, luncheons, telephone conferences and
non deal roadshow with analysts and investors fo update
them on the latest business development of the Group.
Public are welcome to give their comments and make their
enquires through the Company’'s website (www.
chinagasholdings.com.)
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Directors’ Report & F & i 1 =&

The directors present their annual report and the audited HHEGHNRERERE _ZZAF -H =1T—H
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2005. E AR 3 2 A R R o AR A I R -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The AN T B — B B w0 H EHHE A F
activities of its principal subsidiaries and an associate are Ko g 7 s @ 2 6T 4y A RS A S i R B T 7 I
set out in notes 17 and 18, respectively, to the financial 18 -

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS ES 9 3 IS E S

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2005 AEEBE _FEREA =+ —HIEFEZ
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page FEAHNFO0H 2 5 A e as 3. -

60.

No dividend was paid during the year. AR R SN AT IR B S,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY W 5 1

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of AR T B K AR B BOAR B 2 SE A R
the Group for the past five financial years is set out on page B MRS 139 -

139.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT EBN N &

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the AL BARRNT Y BT RN 2
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note R e

15 to the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES FEY %

Details of the major properties of the Group at March 31, AEEPR _EEAFE A T —HZFEYE
2005 are set out on page 140. FEE HOR S 1408 o
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SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and outstanding warrants of
the Company are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

On September 28, 2004, pursuant to agreements made
between the Company and two independent investors,
260,000,000 warrants were issued at a price of HK$0.01 per
warrant. Each of the warrants will give the holder the right to
subscribe in cash for one share of the Company at an inifial
subscription price of HK$0.66 per share of HK$0.01 of the
Company at any time from the date of issue thereof up to
and including September 27, 2009.

During the year, 170,000,000 warrants were exercised and
170,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS$0.01 each in the
Company at a price of HK$0.66 per share were issued. At the
balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding
90,000,000 warrants. Exercise in full of such warrants would
result in the issue of 90,000,000 additional shares.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are sef out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 64 and note 31 fo the financial
statements, respectively.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant events occurring after the balance
sheet date are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Xiao Yun
Mr. Xu Ying

Mr. Liu Ming Hui
Mr. Zhu Wei Wei
Mr. Ma Jin Long

Non-executive directors

Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi (appointed on May 20, 2005)

Mr. Wu Bang Jie (resigned on May 20, 2005)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Zhao Yu Hua
Dr. Mao Er Wan
Ms. Wong Sin Yue Cynthia

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi, Mr. Zhao Yu Hua and Mr. Zhu Wei Wei
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each non-executive director or
independent non-executive director is the period up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the above clause
of the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service confract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at March 31, 2005, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the equity
or debt securities and underlying shares of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”)
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the directors were taken or
deemed fo have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the
"Shares”)

Name of director

HR L

Mr. Liu Ming Hui ("Mr. Liu™)
BIWIRE e A (TRISe4 )

L: Long position
S: Short position

T 3 RAT B RO By 2 HE AR

RoEEAFE=ZH=+—H > #HHERTEAER
T A2 ) E R (i 0 S B e ] ([
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ik 7 AR B S A7 v B AT (o) AR i T S 0 B ok 191
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DG (TH2E T )) 2 Rt SUE A (RLIE AR 9%
i 7 ) B A0k 91 A ] 0k S % o O 2 RO A
WA 2 HEai SUE ) 5 B (o) IR RS IR KO B R
151 55 35216k B 7€ 0 ZH 51 N 5% Ak A1) e 4 2 8w i
W R s A 5 B (c)RIEE S i sl ([ E
AL Pl BT A HE AT R R O 2R
e ST JU) 0 JRUE AR 2 W) B S B 2 i 0
LU

() A% 2% ] 45 i 7 (0.0 W5 75 2 % 4 ik (g
B

Approximate
percentage or
attributable

Number of
attributable

Nature number percentage of
of interest of Shares held shareholdings
(%)
A FrREWEA) H 4 b
RE A5 B Zr e SR E 4 (%)
Personal 375,000,000 (L) 16.71
PN 180,000,000 (S) 8.02
(Note)
(KfaE)
L RAH
S: A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the
"Shares”) (Continued)

Note:

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated
March 8, 2005 (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
Mr. Liu has agreed to sell an aggregate of
190,000,000 Shares to Hai Xia Finance Holdings
Limited ("Hai Xia”). As at March 31, 2005, the sale and
purchase of 10,000,000 Shares has been completed.
Details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated
March 9, 2005.

These 375,000,000 Shares represent 195,000,000
Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Liu and 180,000,000
Shares agreed to be delivered to Hai Xia pursuant to
the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

(b) Share options

Number of

options

Name of director held
(Note)

T A I e R

HEER HH
(B 7%)

Li Xiao Yun 5,000,000
EINE 5,000,000
Xu Ying 95,000,000
e 95,000,00017%
Mr. Liu 135,000,000

Bk

135,000,0001%

I3 AT BN B 2 RE R (4)
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# 4 1:190,000,000/8 B fiy = 7 =%
THFE A -+ —HEZHEH
10,000,000/ Bt iy - 2 Wik 2 7 1
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i% % 375,000,000 i 43 )5 4 th 215
4 45 B A 2 195,000,000 A% 13 &
MR B sk T s A i e 2
180,000,000/ e i3

O 13

Number of

Nature of interest underlying shares

il 2 PR A BR e A 2 B

5,000,000
5,000,000

Beneficial owner

i B

95,000,000
95,000,000

Beneficial owner

T A A

135,000,000
135,000,000

Beneficial owner

JEE L ZSPN
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T 3 KT BB B 2 RE AR (4)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) WEIHE ()

Number of
options Number of
Name of director held Nature of interest underlying shares
(Note)
Fr A R R
HRA BH HE 75 PR HH B R4 # H
(FtE)
Zhu Wei Wei 10,000,000 Beneficial owner 10,000,000
KA 10.000,0001; Haw A A 10,000,000
Ma Jin Long 9,240,711 Beneficial owner 9,240,711
Joy ik 9,240,711 4% T A A 9,240,711
Wu Bang Jie 3,000,000 Beneficial owner 3,000,000
R 3,000,00013 JEETE/ ZEDN 3,000,0001
Zhao Yu Hua 1,700,000 Beneficial owner 1,700,000
i #E 1,700,000 A A 1,700,000
Mao Er Wan 1,700,000 Beneficial owner 1,700,000
BE 1,700,000 Haw A A 1,700,000
Wong Sin Yue Cynthia 1,700,000 Beneficial owner 1,700,000
wAGE 1,700,000 T A N 1,700,000
262,340,711 262,340,711
Note: The share options were granted under the share Mfat - ZEWERE IR A A AR R E =

option scheme adopted by the Company on
February 6, 2003 and the holders thereof are entitled
to subscribe for Shares at an exercise price and

exercise period as disclosed in the section headed

“Share Options” below.

ET N AR R RE R B
FORR A NI R ST B | — B it
AT AR B AT ) B o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at March 31, 2005, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
equity or debt securities and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required fo be notified
fo the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which the directors were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, fo be entfered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified fo the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
fo any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 44 to the financial statements.

I3 AT BN B 2 RE R (4)

B bR E A R BB S
F o A ) 2 7 AT O AR A A 28 7] 5K
CHA B o D (30 25 T 00 00 19 5 XV 0 2 6 36
2 WA SRS 38 %5 AR B B 04 o AT SR L
B 7 (o) AR5 28 5 T 00 B U 90 B XV R 5 7 R 5 8
S5 A R A ) B S T 2 M s (f
AR R 0 00 B e 91 0 S % o
Bk 2 M2 S ) ¢ Sk (b) RS %
T 15 0 19155 35208 B 72 46 28 91 A % M {91 4
2B 2 2 S AT SR () RRAE L Tl
L T R 8 2 B 2 e <
GEE 1A 05 ) B 3 T 2 M o S A

0 0y B O 2 2

B b 3C T3 5 AT BB Iy 2 M i | — B A
Weils B oh > Aoy m BOCHAT 7 BB 2 R B 4
A PR AE ] IR ] AR AR AT 2 B - DUEA A A #
FE SO AR 2 ) AT e R A i N 2 B 17 B AR
Fr 100 M 4t o

iLiigi

A ) W JBCHE R B R OR T B R R
44 -
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) I HE ()

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s 3P AS N F R A N 2 A
share options during the year:

Number of share options

il I i
Exercise ~ Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
price at during during during at
Name Exercisable period per share  April 1, 2004 the year the year the year March 31, 20%2
—RRNE CRBNE
- i1 MAH—H B =A=1—H
4 g fifif MATHE  ORERRE O RMERTE O REREN W A AT
HKS (Nofe 33
e (Hfat3
Directors
Li Xiao Yun 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
ZNE
Xu Ying 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
e (Note 1 ; 0.71 - 90,000,000 - - 90,000,000
(Ktak1
Mr. Liu 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
B (Note 1 f 0.71 - 130,000,000 - - 130,000,000
(HtaE
Zhu Wei Wei 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
ff (Nofe 2; 0.71 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
(HHaE2
Ma Jin Long 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 9,240,711 - - - 9,240,711
Wu Bang Jie* 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
A (Note 2; 071 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
(Ktat2
Zhao Yu Hua 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
£ 1.1.2005 to % 10.5.2014 0.71 - 700,000 - - 700,000
Mao Er Wan 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Ecn 1.1.2005 to % 10.5.2014 0.71 - 700,000 - - 700,000
Wong Sin Yue 9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Cynthia 1.1.2005 to % 10.5.2014 0.71 - 700,000 - - 700,000
# A 4
33,240,711 229,100,000 - - 262,340,711
Other employees  9.1.2004 to% 1.8.2014 0.80 88,000,000 - (5,780,000) (1,100,000) 81,120,000
Al & %of; 22; 0.71 - 166,300,000 - - 166,300,000
i

88,000,000 166,300,000 (5.780,000) (1,100,000) 247,420,000

121,240,711 395,400,000 (5,780,000) (1,100,000) 509,760,711

* Resigned as a director of the Company on May 20, 2005.
Y OB SEEAEAFENLHA A HBATAAL A
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Noftes:

The exercisable period is from November 22, 2004 to October 5,
2074.The exercise of the options will be subject to the condition
that the consolidated net asset value of the Company and its
subsidiaries which shall be certified by the auditors appointed
by the Company as at the date of the exercise of the options
being not less than HK$1 billion.

The original exercisable period was July 1, 2005 to October 5,
2014. Pursuant to a resolution passed in the board of directors
meeting held on March 20, 2005, the exercisable period is
changed to the period from March 20, 2005 to October 5, 2014.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
October 6, 2004, the date of grant, was HK$0.71 per share.

The fair value of the options granted in the current year
measured at the date of grant on October 6, 2004 was HK$0.51
per option. The following significant assumptions were used fo
derive the fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model:

i an expected volatility of 59% based on historical volatility;

ii. no annual dividend; and

ii. the estimated expected life of the options granted during
the year is 10 years. The corresponding 10 years Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes interest rate at the date the
options were granted was 4.32% per annum.

For the purposes of the calculation of fair value, no adjustment
has been made in respect of options expected to be forfeited
due to lack of historical data.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
price. Because changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, in the directors’ opinion,
the existing model does not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of the share options.

1 LR (4
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M

@

€

TEMh —FZEMET+ A+ AE =% —
VO AF A+ B T H o A7 (o SR HE L A 2 ) T I
A 2 A% BT P AT 0 T P R R i 5 > AR 4 R T
Wi g 2 7 2 A R W EOR D A 1O I -

THEMEAl —ZTERELA -AE N
FrHHRH MR _FZHFE=HA_THH
PR G @R IER 2 R E > T e m
CEEAFE A FTHEE-NUEFTHAEH
Z I e

AR T R B A F T AE T HNE M E
H9) T 2 WA A A R B 0.7 1 T -

T A AE L A 2 i BB RE A 45 o H ) — R R
A ANEZATVE RS0 051 T -
7 8 F ST R 0 PR A e O O (R
PRt T 90 2% T T SR

o R R 2 TR 0 A 9%

i AHREERE K

i TR R 2 SR A O R A AR e R
0 AR O R R 2 AR A 9 A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at March 31, 2005, so far as was known to the directors
and the chief executives of the Company, the following
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the
Company, had an inferest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company or any other members of the

Group:

Name of shareholder Capacity

JBe 5 4 4y

Hai Xia (Note 1) Beneficial owner

e (B AET) HEam A A

China Petroleum & Chemical Beneficial owner
Corporation JEETE SN

o B A T A BR A A

Madam Xu Xau Lan (Nofe 2) Deemed Interest

WETE L (B at2) HLVEHE 22

L: Long position
S: Short position

EX 33

PEARN R RATHAREITAN > B TR
=H=F—H > FIIAL RRRZEF ST
BAERII) W8 e A5 KA BRI v 0 A7 AR R 8 0 S
) B R0 25 XV IR 5 2 B 35 303 I 2 Ak ST ZE 1) A
0N F PR 2 RE AR U R o BCE P R ] M 5%
s DA b 2 AR B A T 8 (B A AE — D0 DL T
TR ARy ) B A 4 AT Ao A B H 2 B 2 RO
g ERERHER])

Number or Approximate
attributable number percentage or
of shares held attributable percentage
or short position of shareholdings
(%)
FAT SREAG Z TR EA T 4 L
JBe i 9 B S SR REAG T 43 Lo
340,000,003(L) 15.15
150,000,003(S) 6.68
210,000,000(L) 9.35
510,000,000(L) 22.72
180,000,000(S) 8.02
L RAE
S - HA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FER 4)

Notes: o

(1) On March 8, 2005, a sale and purchase agreement was entered ) AZREFERFEZHINE > kB 5477 —
into between Hai Xia and Mr. Liu. Pursuant fo which Mr. Liu has THE ko PRUL - B AR R R D B I O 0 R]
agreed to sell and Hai Xia has agreed to purchase 190,000,000 7 i B 190,000,000 & > B H I 4 koo
Shares from Mr. Liu in five tfranches for a cash consideration in 17 > B4 E4(5330,000,000% 7T » 38 5wk
an aggregate amount of HK$330,000,000. Details of the IR AN T ZFEAAEZ A UR B A
transaction was set out in the announcement of the Company W e R FEFHE-H=+—H > Hf
dated March 9, 2005. As at March 31, 2005, sale and purchase 10,000,000/ tyz HE X HEHEM - HE
of 10,000,000 Shares has been completed, the outstanding Ji& 133 2 % %8 %4 180,000,000/ °
number of share to be sold and purchased is 180,000,000
Shares.
The 340,000,003 Shares represented 160,000,003 Shares %55 340,000,003 5 B 73 T 4 H 16 0k B 55 HEH 2
beneficially owned by Hai Xia and 180,000,000 Shares agreed 160,000,003 i 8 53 K it e [1] 55 1% 7 1] %) 9 2
to be acquired by Hai Xia from Mr. Liu. A 2 180,000,000 i f73 -

(2) Madam Xu Xau Lan is the spouse of Mr. Liu, the managing (2) BFFML L RAN A #E S BB EEZR
director of the Company. 18 -
The 510,000,000 Shares represented 195,000,000 Shares #%%:510,000,000 % B 7 5 46 B B e A Lt HE
beneficially owned by Mr. Liu, 135,000,000 share options granted 2. 195,000,000/ &y ~ &N "T85l
to Mr. Liu by the Company and the 180,000,000 Shares agreed to 135,000,000 1 i HE S AL 98 1 SC B 51 2158 2
be delivered to Hai Xia by Mr. Liu pursuant fo note 1 above. T 5 455 13 06k 2 180,000, 0008 1 4y »

(3) On February 19, 2005, a subscription agreement was entered B) RZFEHFHTILHE » AL A BHGAIL
into between the Company and GAIL (India) Limited in relation (India) LimitedsT sz — TR W ik - WAEH H
to the subscription of 210,000,000 new Shares of the Company Yio 5B OWE(E A M R B 0y 1158 n > 5B M
at a subscription price of HK$1.158 per new Shares. As at March 210,000,000 7 28 7 Z 8 ey = i =2 F H AR
31, 2005, GAIL (India) Limited did not hold any shares of the =H=+—H > GAIL (India) Limitedilf ft ¢
Company. Completion was taken place on May 3, 2005. BARN AL o SERR ZEFLAERTH =

H AT -

Save as disclosed herein, as at March 31, 2005, the directors bR bSO E SN s R FERAE=H =+ —

and the chief executives of the Company were not aware of H > A ) 38 2 5 AT O B AR N 2R AT o] A+

any person who had an inferest or short position in the shares A TR A B3R R TR A5 v 0 AT Bl A0 AR AR 4

or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the I3 B M B ) 25 XV T 55 2 B 56 343 =2 e SC A 2

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV ] A s A B BR 2 R A B 8 o B 4 o Y

of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% 5% LA b 2 AT A 5 A B A T E (KA 7 — )

or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital 15 LR A 2 ) BOA B AT AT I B A W 2 RO

carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general Keg EREWRER) -

meetings of the Company or any member of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those set out in "Connected Transaction” below
and note 45 to the financial statements, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any fime during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On April 28, 2004, the Company issued 130,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each for a total consideration of
HK$84,500,000 to Mr. Liu, the managing director of the
Company.

On May 19, 2004, FEERE 2 (I AR AR (Central Asia
Natural Gas (Shenzhen) Company Limited) ([ Ei#%])
entfered into an agreement with a minority shareholder of it
R AR T A SR8 R A R A R (Huainan China Gas City Gas
Development Co., Ltd.) ("Huainan China Gas”) in relation to
the acquisition of the remaining 30% equity interests of a
non-wholly owned subsidiary-Huainan China Gas at zero
consideration. A summary of the terms of agreement is set
out in the announcement of the Company dated May 24,
2004.

On July 27, 2004, # 5i#4 5 entered into an agreement with a
minority shareholder of B M & #4344 5088 i A R R (Suizhou
Zhongran City Gas Development Limited) ("Suizhou
Zhongran”) in relation to the acquisition of the remaining
10% equity interests of a non-wholly owned subsidiary-
Suizhou Zhongran at zero consideration. A summary of the
terms of agreement is set out in the announcement of the
Company dated July 28, 2004.

EHZEEG AR

B SC T B 7 5 By | % o 5 i 3R MR Sk 45 0T i
b o ARG R 2 T A A % ) s L B 4
JI0 TSP AR A T A5t TR IR S AR A JRE AT T R ] A 280
PACRUE ONCE UL LR R DN

Il 2 52
ROEENENA AR A AL
5 55 40 6 7 91 Jc £ 967 130,000,000/ 45 1 i
{HO0.01 Jo 2 Bt fiy - #AUfH /5 84,500,000
JL °©

BEEENERAHIUA > PERREE R
D) A B A (1 r g 5 ) B 3 T v 498 3 T 4%
R IRAT IR A ([ wg Pk )) 2 D BOBRRT 5L
ek > PR 2 A R LA A O Xl O 4 e
R — VAR R T SRR A R E) 2 H R
S0%MBAME R o 3% ih e e 5K 2 M2 MR A 2w
T ERMAELA M ARBEZ MR -

EEFNAELH B R AR SR BE M
HHAR T AR SR A BR A ] (TRE M 4R ) 2
BUBCR AT 3L — TA M ko A A B DL D i
W O 2 AT 4 B — BN TR T A SRR SR A
PR FIBR T Z 10%BEAHERR © 3% 1hh w14 3 2 8
BHAALFR —FLNELA —H AR EER
ZAMEA e
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On August 19, 2004, the Company entered into an
agreement with the vendor in relation to the acquisition of
the entire share capital and the shareholder loan of Great
Sun Investment Co. Ltd., which held 25% equity interest in
Xiaogan Zhenrong Gas Co., Ltd., Hanchuan Jiaxu Gas Co.,
Ltd., Yingcheng Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd., Yumeng Jiaxu Gas Co.,
Ltd., and Xiaogan Jianxu Gas Co., Ltd., at a fotal
consideration of RMB81,600,000 (approximately
HK$77,714,000). On the same date, H a4 entered info
agreements with the vendor in relation tfo acquisition of 10%
equity interests in Hanchuan Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd., Yingcheng
Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd., Yumeng Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd., and Xiaogan
Jianxu Gas Co., Ltd., at a total consideration of
RMB17,700,000 (approximately HK$16,856,000).

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
fransactions have been enfered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business and in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing such fransactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s turnover. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were 53% of
total purchases of the Group, with the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 19%.

At no time during the year did any director, any associate of
a director, or any shareholder, which fo the knowledge of the
directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital, have any beneficial inferests in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

B S 5 (4)

W ZEENENHA I > AN E BT IR AL
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FAMRAF ~ BEFERRRA RS R R FI&
F B RIRRA R Al 2 25% B ARE #7) 2 kA
Lo R o [ B > AP s K 5B 5] 7 RT oL
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended
March 31, 2005 with the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange
(which has in force prior to January 1, 2005) except that the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a
specific ferm but are subject to a retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
to re-appoint, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Ying
VICE CHAIRMAN

July 8, 2005
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Auditors’ Report 1% % fifi #

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 60 to
138 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true
and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely fo you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility fowards or accept
liability to any other person for the contfents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the
Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at March 31, 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

July 8, 2005
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Amortisation of goodwill
Deficit on revaluation of
investment properties
Impairment loss reversed
in respect of property,
plant and equipment

Profit from operations

Finance costs

(Loss) gain on disposal
of subsidiaries

Discount on acquisitions of
subsidiaries and an associate
Profit on disposal of discontinued

operation

Share of results of an associate

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit before minority interests

Minority interests

Net profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

S
BB A

T

oAty 2885 i 4

1 8 A
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A 4
BEYHEL
A fis A
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Z WA E

288 s A
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B BB 2 7] 2
(5 18) Wi 2

WA i B J 2 ) S
b s F Z P4

B AR SEH
Z Y A

A A1 T % ) S A

BB Al i A
BLIH

At 2 B SRR i i i
D RO A 2

A4 JEE Vi ] 35 AR

5 e 251 A
HA
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NOTES
it it

2005 2004
SRR Se= LT
HK$°000 HK$°000
T F it T
410,202 376,491
(163,086) (208,081)
247,116 168,410
15,657 12,349
(12,469) (7.649)
(75.526) (61,730)
- (1,959)
- (180)
2,668 5,987
177,446 115,228
(21,270) (24,602)
(1.650) 20,017
15,998 -
= 7.569
(1.035) -
169,489 118,212
(1.475) (1.344)
168,014 116,868
(35,765) (36,808)
132,249 80,060

HK7.17 centsi#fill  HK6.15 cents #Alll

HK6.82 cents#ifill  HK6.04 cents #EAlll
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #: A

At March 31,2005 j* —“EFHFE=H=+—H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Properties held for development

Interest in an associate

Investments in securities

Goodwill

Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits for investments

Current assets
Inventories
Amounts due from customers
for contract work
Trade and other receivables

Investments in securities
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to customers
for contract work
Amounts due to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries
Taxation
Bank and other borrowings
- due within one year
Obligations under a finance lease
- due within one year
Convertible note

Net current assets

B A

BE Y%

Y13 - s B
R (R IELYE S

BB R 2 HE AR
it 77 B E

1
WS 2~ RS B
B 1% &
BEEE

B &

Py

FEW K 2 & #)
A2 K IE

B 5 E WU R K
HL A WA B T
S E
SRAT H5 A7 T B &

T AR

5 5 AT iRk K2
L Al B A+F BRI
At EE 2 &%
THRHRIH
VNN AR ¢
e S
B IH
SRAT B H A AR B
— R —F R E
il AL B R 4fE
— A —EREH
] B R R

LB A

FEEAMEK

2005 2004

SRFHE S FENE

NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt it T #c T T
14 - 9,620
15 998,112 237,469
16 17.500 36,200
18 20,454 -
19 5,490 5,490
20 209,394 107,133
21 298,700 -
22 - 12,381
1,549,650 408,293

23 38,829 12,714
24 366,664 143,435
25 85,761 291,214
19 14,430 14,800
695,389 471,823

1.201,073 933,986

26 170,876 72,315
24 892 343
435 985

157 381

28 172,928 278,489
29 64 12
33 35,900 -
381,252 352,625

819,821 581,361

2,369,471 989,654
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CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CCEFREZH =

At March 31, 2005

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Minority inferests

Non-current liabilities

Amount due to a minority shareholder
of a subsidiary

Bank and other borrowings
- due after one year

Obligations under a finance lease
- due after one year

Convertible note

Convertible bonds

P A R At A
Je A
{5

D B M 2

i B £ A

JEASE — SR B i > /] — 44

D B R IR
SRAT B Ho A AR B

— R AR
il A B R I

— R AR
AR B R
QEeres

The financial statements on pages 60 to 138 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on July 8,

2005 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xu Ying Liu Ming Hui

Vice-Chairman

Managing Director

NOTES
[ 7

30

27
28
29

33
34

UM T T

a

ol

2005 2004
SRRHE  CFENE
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Tt Tl T
22,448 15,578
966,093 487,096
988,541 502,674
97,360 91,121
132,931 -
1,150,518 313,230
121 185

- 46,800

= 35,644
1,283,570 395,859
2,369,471 989,654

FOOHZHIBBH L MBWMKRC HEFHN —FF N
B AN AL HE R SRR B AT 0 h T ST SRR

R
E A

B W)

A
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¥ ==
BALANCE SHEET & /£ & & =
At March 31,2005 ji* —“FFHFE=H=+—H
2005 2004
ZRENAE =T
NOTES HKS$’000 HKS’'000
Bt it T80 F itk oo
Non-current assets I LB G E
Property, plant and equipment Y~ RE MR 15 886 667
Interests in subsidiaries W B S T 2 R AR 17 726,917 493,536
Interest in an associate T N B 2 RE £ 18 16,456 =
Investments in securities iR 19 = 5,220
Deposits for investments BEL 4 22 = 12,381
744,259 511,804
Current assets LB A
Trade and other receivables &F 5 A He 3K I
L A 8 ol R T 1,088 219
Bank balances and cash SRAT H5 A7 T B 4 52,238 14,233
53,326 14,452
Current liabilities it B &
Trade and other payables 2 5 WE A i R %
L Al R AT B T 4,100 3,895
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B HoAth & £
- due within one year RN 28 2,116 2,061
Obligations under a finance lease il A AR A
- due within one year — A —4F N B 29 64 112
Convertible note CIE S &% 33 35,900 -
42,180 6,068
Net current assets i B A R 11,146 8,384
755,405 520,188
Capital and reserves JBEAS R A A5
Share capital i@ 30 22,448 15,578
Reserves it 4 31 697,670 381,266
720,118 396,844
Non-current liabilities L E) A fE
Bank and other borrowings SRAT K HoA &
- due after one year - AR 28 16,042 17,992
Obligations under a finance lease il Tl R
- due after one year — —4EAR B 4 29 121 185
Amounts due to subsidiaries IR B I8 2 A R E 32 19,124 22,723
Convertible note CIEL S &% 33 - 46,800
Convertible bonds A 6 R AE 55 34 - 35,644
35,287 123,344
755,405 520,188
Xu Ying Liu Ming Hui i ) B
Vice-Chairman Managing Director e A
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CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

B i —?‘?
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY %

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

o>
B

between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

The statutory funds are reserves required by the relevant laws of
the People’s Republic of China, other than Hong Kong (the
"PRC") applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserve as at March 31, 2005 represents the consideration
received from subscribers for the issue of warrants.

Other reserve as at March 31, 2004 represented the advance
payment received from the subscriber for the private placement
of which the shares have been issued and allotted during the
year ended March 31, 2005.

Share Accumulated
Share  premium Other  Translation Special  Statutory (losses)
capital  account reserve reserve reserve funds profits Total
it (B8)
Bk BOEEE  RERE  EXRE  RNRE  Beid il 5
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Ti#x T Ti#x T Ti#x T Ti#x
At April 1, 2003 ROBESESASH—0 18428 284290 -5 L6 20 (162904 144726
Exchange gain on franslation of operations KR4 A s &R Z
outside Hong Kong and gain not recognised i SNER 2
in the consolidated income statement 30e - - - 2,066 - - - 2,066
Realised upon the disposal of a subsidiary ~ Hi & B /A 7l B - - - - - (190) 190 -
Private placements HARE 2800 214,500 - = - - - 217.300
Conversion of convertible bonds BT 169 10717 - - - - - 10,886
Conversion of preference shares BB (5.814) 5814 - - - - - -
Share issue expenses Tl 87 3¢ - (9.432) - - - - - (9.432)
Expenses on issuing converfible bonds BHMRRER 2R - (932) - - - - - (932)
Proceeds of private plocements received in -~ BAREZFl
advance B atR - - 58000 - - - - 58000
Net profit for the year A - - - - - - 80,060 80,060
Transfer LEE - - - - - 3,052 (3,052) -
Af March 31, 2004 REZENE=A=+—H 15578 504,957 58,000 3,241 1,602 5,002 (85,706) 502,674
Exchange gain on franslation of operations K& Al % il
outside Hong Kong and gain not recognised 2 it A F AN TS
in the consolidated income stafement IS - - - 842 - - - 842
Issue of new warrants B anad it - - 2,600 - - - - 2,600
Private placements MARE 4301 255,212 (58,000) - - - - 20513
Conversion of convertible bonds BTk ESR 811 42,631 - - - - YY)
Exercise of share options TrlRm 58 4,566 - - - - - 4,604
Exercise of warrants T s 1700 112,200 (1,700) - - - - 2200
Share issue expenses Tl 87 - (10130) - - - - - (10130)
Expenses on issuing converfible bonds BHMRRES 2R - (1,283) - - - - - (1283)
Expenses on issuing warrants R 2L - (190) - - - - - (190)
Net profit for the year AR - - - - - - 12249 132049
Transfer 3 = = = = = 4,073 (4.073) =
At March 31, 2005 REZFZLE=A=T—H 20448 907963 900 4,083 1,602 9075 42470 988541
Note: The special reserve of the Group represents the difference Bt aE o A2 T 2 4 Rl AR AR T 48 A A ) B e I

2 BB T B 2w R R — UL T A B
T R A AT 4% [ ER AL ] i S B 2 D T R AT
2Rz EE —H A -

e R Ty N RSEA B ([ B > Bt
B A AE A UE) A B A A A I I
RN FVEEA Z o

O EERAESH = — B2 HAb AR
HLBEAT 58 M HE ) R M A L I R

REERNAEZH =+ — H 2 HAb AR
BE_FLTHF=ZA=+—HIEFEEURLA
A 5 75 SR AT S TE 5% 5 T ) N = i
ZHGR o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit from operations
Adjustments for:
Deficit on revaluation of
investment properties
Impairment loss reversed in respect
of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised holding loss (gain)
on otfher investments
Depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of goodwill
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Loss (gain) on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in other investments

Increase in inventories

Increase in amounts due from customers
for contract work

Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables

Decrease in amount due from
an associate

Increase in amounts due to customers
for contract work

Increase in frade and other payables

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to
minority shareholders of subsidiaries

Cash from (used in) operations
PRC income tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

R B
A8 85 i
RELLT g

B W) €T A e Al

PI3E ~ RS Bkt
£ #3 [2] 38 {6 5 12
Frfr A& 2 R 8

i 18 (i dt)
WIS~ RS Bkt
88 % il 8

1 A

B B ) e dR
Y - RS K
Z IR (as)

FLE A

BEESBENZEE
W LA

L Ath 42 14 o

7R

R EF 2 &% Lk
HIE S

2 Gy IR AT M e L At IR Wi
R TE Bk 2D (3% m)

g A W) R

A% 2 &% T2
IS

B 5 AT B e A
AT B ZEL 584

R WA JE 2 ] 2 R
IH () H

REEHESE TR Ba
SRR RS

gk Es (i)
BleFH

2005 2004
SERHE CFENE
HK$000 HK$ 000
T T FitEoT
177,446 115,228
- 180
(2.668) (5.987)
370 (370)
11,071 9,605
- 1,959
(300) -
51 (173)
1.911) (425)
184,059 120,017
- (14,430)
(25.640) (8.825)
(223,229) (143,435)
21,402 (204,493)
- 2,199

549 343
79,409 70,649
(550) 2,395
36,000 (175,580)
(1.699) (327)
34,301 (175,907)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT EEHSRER

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

2005 2004
“ERRHAE —RFNLE
NOTES HK$'000 HKS$ 000
i 7F F T F it
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEWE
Interest received £ Y FLE 1,911 425
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, W EEY 2 - R MR A
plant and equipment B A e 4 (264,513) =
Deposits refunded (paid) for investments B G B & s 5,714 (12,381)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 4K SR A7 47 K sk 2D = 57,143
Purchase of additional interest 4 W A JB 2 ) HE A
in subsidiaries (95.413) (577)
Purchase of property, plant g E Y2 - WE Kkt
and equipment (505,822) (107,273)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - FE KA
plant and equipment RS QL 18 9,909
Proceeds from disposal of an associate H S T N ) T A 3 IE - 1,704
Proceeds from disposal of iR =—EP S L/ EYIRES (L
investment properties 9,920 -
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash and Ve A 2 D T BR i e
cash equivalents acquired 2B KRB aEEER 36 (72,743) (111,623)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash B B E A F) o FnER
and cash equivalents disposed of 2 Bl I Bl S HIE H 37 17,050 43,152
Purchase of an associate s B g v 2 (7.210) =
Capital injection info an associate BRI - /NEIRE S <3 (9.246) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES W W) P B4 (920,334) (119,515)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT %75 Bl 4 i

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Inferest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
Proceeds from issue of convertible note

Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds

Proceeds from issue of warrants
Share issue expenses
Expenses on issuing convertible bonds
Expenses on issuing warrants
Repayment of convertible notes
Repayment of convertible bonds
New bank and other borrowings raised
Repayments of bank borrowings
Repayments of obligations under
a finance lease
Capital injected by minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Advance from a minority shareholder
of a subsidiary
Proceeds of private placements
received in advance

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash

il 5 4% )

24 A5

BEAT A ] 2 BT A5 2R

BEAT AT AR SR 2 AR B
BEAT W] B (5 I 2 T A5 R
BEAT RO R RS 2 T AR A
JBe A 3547 B S

BEAT W] A AR I 2 BH 3
AT ol B HE R 2 B S

7 ] 4 e R 4

8 7 ] R B £ 55
S R AT S LA A A

8 7R SRAT M A

TRl L &) 7R A 2 3 3K

Wi I 2 ) D BB B
W 2 ) 2 S SR

PR G N
I 5% 3 A

Al 4% ) P 1 B 1

BERBEFMHERZ
54 n

FERZ B8 KB & FE
HH

M R B 2

FERZBIE KRB EFME
HH

Bl kBl &S HIEHE
m%ﬁﬁ
1T iR M &

=,

B
2005 2004
BN e QuIEES
HK$000 HK$°000
T Ttk oo
(22,571) (26,171)
318,337 217,300
- 46,800
54,523 46,530
2,600 -
(10,130) (9.432)
(1.283) (932)
(190) -
(10,900) -
(46,725) -
994,017 640,976
(319,433) (301,267)
112) (53)
17,693 933
132,931 -
- 58,000
1,108,757 672,684
222,724 377,262
471,823 92,477
842 2,084
695,389 471,823
695,389 471,823
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1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation
of natural gas, property investment and financial and
securities investment.

ADOPTION OF NEW HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certfified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") issued a number of new or revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard (*HKFRS") and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS(s)") (hereinafter
collectively referred to as "new HKFRS(s)”) which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or affer
January 1, 2005. In the current year, the Group resolved
to early adopt the following new HKFRSs:

HKFRS 3
HKAS 36

Business Combinations
Impairment of Assets

HKFRS 3 applies to accounting for business combination
for which the agreement date is on or after January 1,
2005. The early adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36 from
April 1, 2004 has resulted in the Group ceasing annual
amortisation of goodwill and to test for impairment
annually at the cash generating unit level (unless an
event occurs during the year which requires the
goodwill fo be tested more frequently). Discount on
acquisition is credited to the income statement in the
period of acquisition. The transitional provisions of HKFRS
3 have required the Group to eliminate the carrying
amount of the accumulated amortfisation by
approximately HK$1,908,000 with a corresponding entry
to the cost of goodwill. As a result of this change in
accounting policy, the profit of the Group for the year
has been increased by approximately HK$22,056,000.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

1.

&

— & R

AN BA B RS RE M AL A — R e
MR w) > H A i & W 5 28 5 B A IR
A (TBEsBr)) B e

)

=112

SH

AN E By — ECE BN R - HHE A
EELHERRFER - YR E U K
L I L& o

BR AR A i B H T B

s 8w B 2 AR A TR AT L B AR A T
T Y S R A ) R e o R (AR
[ 7 i B 5 PR ORI D) R S B A U B
B R RERIA L A — A — B ECHAR
W g at IR AR - MAEE > AEEC R
PR A LT SR A o R R R

TR HOERISE39E B S
A G wt e R 2 3658 7 i (H

7 5 B B A e 5 3 A R
H_FLTRE-A-HBHEEFGHZ
GatlRE - B ZFZFMENA — Bl R
PR A0 A i 5 P R B 5 3% K A s ot
R 369E > SALBMMN —FFIE—H
— H B 6 % AL 55 47 10 7 B B % B AR A
A 3R 4 B K FE B R Bl (B R R 4 T
A I A PR ZHAEZ WHIB0) o iz A
FE A S [ B9 W B 3R o A U A R R R
JUJ 55 390 A0 8 R O AR L AE > AR 4 T ZE BTN
#11,908,000% 7T 2 B 7 28 i 51 2 AR 1 18
{6 Sl B2 7 A B A MR o it & R BUOR 2 B
B > AR M4 N 2 i A3 hn 922,056,000
#IT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %5 ¥t 35 Bt 5%

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

&

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE
RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the HKICPA issued a number of new HKFRSs
which are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2005. Except for early adoption of
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36 as mentioned in note 2, the Group
has not early adopted the remaining new HKFRSs in the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2005.

In relafion to those new HKFRSs that have not been early
adopted by the Group (other than HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36
as mentioned in note 2), the Group has commenced
considering these remaining new HKFRSs but is not yet
in a posifion to determine whether these HKFRSs would
have a significant impact on how the results of
operations and financial position of the Group are
prepared and presented. These remaining new HKFRSs
may result in changes in the future as to how the results
and financial positions are prepared and presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified for revaluation of
certain investment properties and investments in
securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting
policies adopted are as follows:

&

AT BB w2 T AR Y

RoRENE > FE G GHEST
A e S RS R R TR AE— A
— H SR BA 16 2 & w0 TR AR 30 o RS B
RE 2097 At $2 L DR A 7 o o R R O )2 3 9%
LA g st R SE 36985 > A 4R B 3f M
BE_ZFHFE=A=1T—HILFEZH
5 R AR R A L AR 7 B R R
]

A 42 B S R £ R R AR 2 A S R R
e JU) (B E 29 20 42 5% 3R 40 7 5 B 5 o ik e
U2 35% b A it Er wt ME I 2 3658 4h) » A
B B R 75 R S T A T U AR R R R
M R B 7 72 5% 45 7 i U B R iR R U A R
L BIVASE W 2 S R B AR DL
K Y B o WA RT R T S R e
] e F AR A S B B S A B B B IR DL i
R B

HEaEhEOR
S 5 0 3R T JEE S A TR A Y I L
T HE AL BE Y 3 K S PR AR BT -

S 5 S 2 9 AR R A 9 A e A i U
Ao TRRM 2 EEERIERWT ¢
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to March 31 each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant infercompany transactions and balances
within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before March 31, 2004
is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful economic life. From April 1, 2004 onwards,
the Group has ceased annual amortisation of goodwill
and to test for impairment at least annually. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented
separately in the balance sheet.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after April 1, 2004
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s inferest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of fthe

subsidiaries at the date of acquisition.

4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 15 2< fff 5

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

o EE s EOR 4t)

hr £y Bk

AR A B TR AR AN 2 ) B HL R R 2 )
WNEGHE=ZH=1+—"HZMHHE -

AF T W R 2 B Y R 2 SE AR e
AR H A SO R AR H R (DU
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hEAEBANAFMZERZ S REHD
TR A AR H IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A %5 % 2 [} &

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash
generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated may
be impaired. An impairment loss is determined by
comparing the carrying amount of the cash generating
unit, including the goodwill, with the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement. Where goodwill
forms part of a cash generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit are disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Reversal of
impairment loss of goodwill is prohibited.

For acquisitions after April 1, 2004, any deficiency of the
cost of acquisition below the Group’s share of the fair
values of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the subsidiaries at the date of acquisition (i.e.
discount on acquisition) is credited to the income
statement in the period of acquisition.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

4.

h=iid
-

o E G EOR 4t)

i (A

FAEMHEATHRE REAAHERE
B P Y B 2 B A A BT RE R (E -
80 L s 4R )9 28 308 LU BB < 7 A B (LA
B 2 W% Th i BB < E A R 2 W] ] 4
11T i S o i B <z 2 AR B0z 2 T el < R A
T MR TR > B i 4 3R b R RR B (E B R -
v A B < A B 2 — AR HR R
B2 5B 3 B IR fEE 3
B B Kok 1R > BLE B SEH A B 2
PR A ERS 2 MR o 7 e (E s 1R
AN BE 1] 45 o

MO EFRPAENH — R BETS - °
W S S A S B A (L A R R IR A Y
AEE - AMEKERARAFEZZEZ®T B
W S AT ) T A SO U ] 2 i g R o

TP P I 2 W 2 4%

TP B 8 2 ) 22 A5 T 4 AR (L AT A A T
PR ERE R AR AR EEARKA -
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Gas connection revenue is recognised when the
outcome of a confract can be estimated reliably and
the stage of completion at the balance sheet date can
be measured reliably. Revenue from gas connection
confracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
value of work carried out during the year. When the
outcome of a gas connection contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract cost incurred that it is probable to be
recoverable.

Sales of petroleum, natural gas and gas appliances are
recognised when goods are delivered and ftitle has
passed.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

Sale proceeds on trading of securities are recognised
on a trade date basis when a sale and purchase
contract is entered into.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights fo receive payment have been
established.

4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 15 2< fff 5

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

o EE s EOR 4t)

LN T

IR SR B A T iR & [R] 2 45 545 DA AT 58 A
RN G B 5 B PE B A9 DA AT 5E S AR ffE
7o MARIEER A F 2 WA T 275 4 N AT
TRZEHE > O TERZ A5 2 ik
w8 o A R SR B G A 2 A5 R A RE AT SE il
B AR R EE A 2 T R ] R A 2
N R o

G RARRBARMEZHE
% % L) RS I A R

HIREY

KA 2 WA T 1A B A 2 45
AE A% Y i DA R AR

HEG&F WG FIEETLEES
K 2 58 5y BAR 7y B M i AR R -

AL WA T AR R A AR A < B T R
IR ] ZE e R -

B 2 B B A B SR A B S, 2 HE ) A
il 57 IRF i DA e 52 o



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A %5 % 2 [} &

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate

The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the posf-acquisition results of its
associate for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, inferests in an associate are stated at the Group'’s
share of the net assets of the associates plus the
premium paid less any discount on acquisition in so far
as it has not already been amortised to the income
statement, less any idenftified impairment loss.

The results of an associafe is accounted for by fthe
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year. In the Company’s balance
sheet, investment in an associate is stated at cost, as
reduced by any identified impairment loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which
are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market
value based on independent professional valuations at
the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase or
decrease arising on the revaluation of investment
properties is credited or charged to the investment
property revaluation reserve unless the balance of this
reserve is insufficient fo cover a revaluation decrease, in
which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over
the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a
decrease has previously been charged to the income
statement and a revaluation increase subsequently
arises, this increase is credited fo the income statement
fo the extent of the decrease previously charged.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

20 years or less.

Properties held for development

appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment

amortisation and accumulated impairment loss.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on
the investment property revaluation reserve attributable
tfo that property is fransferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties
except where the unexpired term of the relevant lease is

Properties held for development are stated at the cost
of acquisition to the Group together with any
attributable expenses less impairment losses, where

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less depreciation and

4.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Confinued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Land use rights Over the shorter of the term of the
lease or the operation period of the
relevant company

Leasehold land  Over the remaining terms of the

leases
Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
terms of the leases or 50 years
Pipelines Over the shorter of 30 years or the

operation period of the relevant
company
Machinery and
equipment 10%
Furniture and
fixtures 15% - 50%
Motor vehicles 25%

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceed and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Construction in progress

Constfruction in progress represents machinery and
pipelines under construction and is stated at cost. Costs
comprise direct and indirect incremental costs of
acquisition or construction. Completed items are
fransferred from constfruction in progress to proper
categories of property, plant and equipment when they
are ready for their intended use.

4.

b= {2
HH

o E G EOR 4t)

Yok ~ Wb Kk i (AT)

PrgE B T 1 3 - RS R s 2 A s
o AR Sl 25 HL A ORI BR B (ELAR > A
L SR I L AR E o BT 2 AR R AT

o b fil A HE A B~ ) 2 R &) A R
REFW (LBEER
#)

L& L A i AH 4 4F

T | % H %) 47 ] 5504 (A
W 1)

HE SO E A B~ 7l 2 588

(DL oy )

A B 10%

B e B 15%—50%

R 25%

o B RO T A 2 Wi B 1R T
R 2 AR T A I LR T (L T 2 2R
HEAE W 48 R T HERE -

e TR

1E i TRE A B p 2 i A 3 DAAR
AAEFI B o A G 48 WO B i 4 2 H X
4230 B R o 52 UIE H RS AT AR 3 E i
M F) 7 TR B R W26 RS
B KA

75



76

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date
basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities
are classified as investment securities and other
investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long-term strategic purpose are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any
impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or loss
for the year.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are charged to the
income statement by reference to the stage of
completion of the confract activity at the balance
sheet date, as measured by the proportion that costs
incurred to date to estimated fotal costs for the
contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When a contract covers a number of assets, the
construction of each asset is treated as a separate
confract when separate proposals have been
submitted for each asset, each asset has been
separately negotiated and the costs and revenues of
each asset can be separately identified. A group of
confracts, performed concurrently or in a confinuous
sequence, is treated as a single construction contract
when they were negotiated as a single package and
are so closely inter-related that they constitute a single
project with an overall profit margin.

Inventories

Inventories, including construction materials, gas
appliances and gas for sales, petroleum, consumables
and spare parts, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs to completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets, other than goodwill as
stated above, fo defermine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment (Confinued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been deftermined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless that relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is freated as a revaluation increase under that
other standard.

Convertible note/bonds

Convertible note/bonds are recognised as liabilities
unless conversion actually occurs. The finance cost
recognised in the income statement in respect of the
convertible note/bonds is calculated so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the convertible note/bonds for each
financial year.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets concern to the
Group. Assets held under finance leases are capitalised
at their fair value at the dates of acquisition. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as obligations under finance leases. The
finance costs, which represent the difference between
the total finance leases commitments and the fair value
of the assetfs acquired, are charged to the income
statement over the term of the relevant lease so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

All other leases are classified as operating leases and
the rentals are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) and other defined contribution
schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions or at the contracted settlement rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are included in net profit or loss for the year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s overseas operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are franslated at the
average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
fransferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such
franslation differences are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the fax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assefs and liabilities in a
tfransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Confinued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction on production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of these assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their infended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to expense items are recognised in the
same period as those expenses are charged in the
income statement and are reported separately as
“other operating income”.
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5.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold, sales of piped gas, gas
connection fees, dividend income and rental income
received and receivable by the Group for the year and
is analysed as follows:

Gas connection fees IR SR 2 B
Sales of petroleum S
Sales of piped gas S5 B E R R
Sales of goods FHE B
Rental income GEEA N
Dividend income B S A
Others HAthy

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised info four operating divisions - property
investment, financial and securities investment, gas
pipeline construction and sales of piped gas. These
principal operating activities are the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information. The
Group had disposed its sales of petroleum business
during the year March 31, 2004.
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6.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(Continued)

Business segments (Confinued)

Segment
presented below:

2005

REVENUE
Turnover

SEGMENT RESULT

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Discount on acquisitions of
subsidiaries and an associate

Share of results of an associate

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit before minority interests
Minority interests

Net profit for the year

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Additions to goodwill

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to property, plant and
equipment (unallocated)

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation
(unallocated)

information about these businesses
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8,344

10,304
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209,237

5,931
(31.722)

177,446
(21,270)
(1,650

15,998

(1,035)

169,489
(1.475)

168,014
(35.765)

1268

2,390,782
359,941

2,750,723
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1,499,475

1,664,822
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6.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(Continued)

Business segments (Confinued)

2004

REVENUE
Turnover

SEGMENT RESULT

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit from operations

Finance cosfs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit on disposal of discontinued
operation

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profi before minority interests
Minority inferests

Net profit for the year

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated fotal assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Additions to goodwill

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to property, plant
and equipment (unallocated)

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation
(unallocated)

Deficit on revaluation of
investment properties
Amortisation of goodwill

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. W K0y TEE K (45)

E¥ o HE (H)

“REMg
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
AL
HEREER B
Financial
and Gas
Property  securiies  pipeline  Sales of Sales of Con-
investment  investment construc}?i)gon piped gc!Es Others petroleum  solidated
i i #
WERE  BHRE O BEER  HERR H HERN e
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T#r  T#x  T#x  T#x  TEx  T#Er  T#x
Wi
BEH 1,262 94 185,045 49727 10,572 129,791 376,491
AEES (715) 54 130,015 8152 2556 (518) 139,544
Y UNGLE 10,109
Y WL B (34,425)
BERA 116,228
g dii (24,602)
o AR ) 2 - - - 20,017 - - 20,017
e EEER 2 A
- - - - - 7.569 7,569
Wi Bt i 118,212
BE (1,344)
At RO o A 116,868
62 Ui £ (36,808)
A i A R 80,060
5
HEEE 45,966 20,290 164,601 858,012 9,087 - 1,097,956
ARRAFHE 244,323
GREEME 1,342,279
Aff
AR 1,125 - 31,052 32,551 1,857 - 66,585
AIRA A R 681,899
GRARAHE 748,484
L gs
AR E - - - 93,727 - - 93,727
VESY VG VAN
- - - 166,486 - 14,955 181,441
W B RRHZRE RAR)
3.278
278,446
T 5 = = - 2,896 - 5213 8,109
T8 BB KRR
1,496
9.605
EARIS-CEVA 1o
180 - - - - - 180
TG - - - 497 - 1,462 1,959
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6.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6.

(Continued)
Geographical segments

The Group'’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC.The Group'’s property investment, financial and
securities investment divisions are located in Hong
Kong. Sales of piped gas and gas pipeline construction
are carried out in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis of
the Group'’s sales by geographical market, the carrying
amount of segment assets, and additions to property,
plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical
area is presented.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7.

Interest income FLE WA

Subsidies of PRC governmental R B B RT R 2 B
authorities

Sundry income AETE A

Gain on disposal of investment R G 2 2 e
properties

Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - BFE KB
plant and equipment Z Wi i

Unrealised holding gain on e HoAth 4% & 2 K5
other investments Bk 4

b= {2
HH

W Koy THE KL ()

M [k 4y 5

AL EH MR FER TR - AL
PIEBE ~ B RE 0 AR
Ve o T E IR SR B AR SRV A S R R
BAEAT o RIL o A B2 I S 0 9 A T 355 )
g~ v B A 2 R E LR B - WUE
Lo w8 B A 2 AT o

A 42 A
2005 2004
SRFHE  CFENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt 3% 75
1,911 425
10,665 7,857
2,781 3,524
300 =
- 173
— 370

15,657 12,349

85



86

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

8. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been
arrived at after charging
(crediting):

Audifors’ remuneration
Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and
equipment on:
Owned assets
Asset held under a finance lease

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Minimum lease payments for
operatfing leases in respect of:
- renfed premises
- equipment
Staff costs:
Directors” emoluments (nofe 11)
Salaries and allowances of
other staff
Conftributions to retirement
benefit scheme confributions
of other staff
Less: amount capitalised in
constfruction in progress

Unrealised holding loss on
other investments

Rental income from investment
properties less outgoings of
HK$54,000 (2004: HK$76,000)

T

N
-

8. AL ik

KB E A E MR GEA)
THIIA

A B P
WIS~ RS K
AT R R

HEHE

MRyE RS T A 2 EE
Y~ RS RS 2 s R
KB A 2 R &

—HEYE

— i
BT RA:

M (BT

oAt A B 2 3 B B R

2y Ho A 4R B 1 R AR
8 A AR

WA R LR 2

FrA Ho At B8 2 R 58 Bl 1R

P& W 2 A 2 FH B A 8T 8
54,0007 Jt (=% 244 4£:76,000% 7T)
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2005 2004
SERRTRE CEFENE
HK$°000 HK$'000
T# T # T
1,500 900
10,954 9,537

17 68

11,071 9,605

51 -

4,640 788

550 351

6,276 5,253
29,420 17,678

1,477 971
(2.168) (608)
35,005 23,294

370 -
(440) (1.186)
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9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Bank loans and other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years
Obligations under a finance lease
Convertible note
Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds redemption
premium

Less: Interest capitalised to
construction in progress

DISCOUNT ON ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

AND AN ASSOCIATE

Discount on acquisition of a
subsidiary (note 36)

Discount on acquisitions of
additional interest in
subsidiaries (note 45(ii))

Discount on acquisition of an
associate (note 18)

9.

UTFHHEZFE :

R TLAF R 2 BUEE 2 SRATEE K

L HoAt AR 5K

TR IRA A R A UE R 2 SRAT R

il A B R 3
] 0 B R R
] AR S5

SB[ P £ ik

W A TR A AR

WS s — SR WA I Wl 2
i (Hf7E36)

WS i B 2 ) A A 2
Z YT (Mt 45(ii)

W g — R A Al 2
Prik (Kt 18)

S 265 e 3 R

A 5 #

2005 2004
ZRRHAE FRNE
HK$°000 HK$°000
F# T T T
28,980 25,081
22,189 1,713

20 13

817 759

228 165

5,646 =
57,880 27,731
(36.610) (3.129)
21,270 24,602

10. Wi 3 WA J 28 w1 K2 Wk 8 W) 2 Tl

2005 2004
SRFHE  CEFENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt 3% 75
150 =

10,815 =
5,033 =

15,998 =
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Directors’ fees
- executive
- non-executive
- independent non-executive

Other emoluments - executive

- salaries and other benefits

- contributions fo retirement
benefit scheme

Total emoluments

bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 fo HK$2,500,000

11. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

F S
—#i7
— AT
— B BT

HoA P 2 — AT
— Fr i B H A AR A
— ) 3B AR A T 1 A3k

P <5 4 3

The emoluments of the directors were within the following

% %1,000,000% 7t

1,000,001 # 7t %2 1,500,000 7C

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

11.

# R B &

2005 2004
SRRHE EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
1,100 100
240 240

360 321
1,700 661
4,540 4,592
36 =
4,576 4,592
6,276 5,253

T

2005
“ERNLE
No. of
Directors

EEAY

2,000,001 ¥ 7t %2 2,500,000 7t 2

J& 7% T 3P o e R A EE O

2004
ZRFME
No. of
Directors

HHAH
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11.

12.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

Employees (Continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2004: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining
two (2004: three) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

& T H: At A F
Retirement benefit scheme FER N AR R

contributions

Emoluments of each of the two (2004: three) individuals
were below HK$1,000,000.

TAXATION

The amount represents PRC income tax for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Certain subsidiaries operatfing in the PRC are eligible for
fax holidays and concessions and were exempted from
the PRC income taxes for the year.

11.

12.

B 265l 2 A

= MR B4 (4)

h=iid
-

R B & (A7)

AEMEBEFEBHZLAMAALS > = A (2
TENE : WA BANFIESE > 55 ZM
B B EE o HERm 4 (CFFNAE =
AR PN e 3

2005 2004
SRFHE  CEFENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt 3% TG
1,215 1,625

42 34

1,257 1,559

ZW A (CERNE  =Z4) ALK HZM
421k 1,000,000 7T -

Bt IH
ARRER FFNER _FTRELH
5 T 45 Bi

PP A 4 T A S 4 349 0 JRE AR B i L o K
Sl A T S 75 ik 22 0 7 4 M) A B AR o B AR

HE At ) ik R T 2 5 IEL G H A k E T
TR S

AT R B A 2 B JE 2 ] AT ERA S A
L BB e > Sl S A A B 2 B A
ﬁé‘ o
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12. TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit

(loss) before taxation per the income statement as

follows:

Profit (loss) before faxation

Tox af the domestic income fax rafe

Tax effect of share of result of
an associate

Tox effect of expenses not deductible
for fax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of deferred tax asset not
recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Effect of fox exemption granted fo
cerfain PRC subsidiaries

Others

Taxation for the year

WBLATE A (BHR)

S RS YA
L NGk v
hKye

RUBLIELT &5 AN AT 1 2
Eoa v

SRR = AR L
EbwaiNEZ

i B 2 AR
BEZHEYE

BB 1A RERR
LHBER

RYETHEMEARZ
b %

Nofe: The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong and the PRC is
17.5% and 33%, respectively (2004: 17.5% and 33%,

respectively).
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-

o N

12. BLIH (4)
A T B TH B i i 3% BT R 2 B BRI i A (s
#H) 2 BT
Hong Kong PRC
Eik il
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“RREE CZTNE ZFRLE CZTNE CRRAE -
HK$000 HKS 000  HK$'000 HKS 000  HK$'000 HKS 000
T#rx  Ti#x  T#x  Té#Exr  T#x  Ti#Ex
(35,285) (2002) 204774 120214 169,489 118212
(6.175) (351) 67,575 39,671 61,400 39,320
- - 342 - 342 -
1,747 72 1,250 1,526 2,997 2,238
(596) (5.183) (6.162) (2.447) (6.758) (7.630)
5,250 4,822 1,055 263 6,305 5,085
(179) - (68) - (247) -
- - (62517)  (37.669)  (62517)  (37.669)
(47 - - - (47 -
- - 1,475 1,344 1,475 1,344

BiFaE: i Ko B 2 T A5 BB & 0 R A
17.5% 5% 33% (— FF U4 43 7 £517.5%
K 33%) o
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of w0 A i A 3 ) 2 vk )
basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential A VB A 2 s
ordinary shares:

Interest on convertible note CIEIY X Yk Jidies
and convertible bonds Z B

Earnings for the purposes of FRCEERIE: TR Pl

diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of w5 A e AR ¥
ordinary shares for the purpose 25 R n R ST 34 2
of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential - 48 IV A T
ordinary shares: -2
Convertible note CIEY &%
Convertible bonds CIEiSId e
Share options Wi i 1
Warrants o 1 HE 75

Weighted average number of w S IR s A 2
ordinary shares for the purpose 50 T ST 24 8

of diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended March 31, 2004 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as
the exercise price of those options was higher than the
average market price for shares for the year ended
March 31, 2004.

S 255l 2 R

5 1 v A
B A R M G R T 4% T A E R R

AABE_FTFNF=A=+—HILFE
PR A R IR Sl AR A R
REREAT B > IR AR 2 ) P i 2 AT 1R
AR HEE - FFNE=H=+—H1k
FEEZTFHHE -

b= {2
HH

2005 2004
—RRHE  —FENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
132,249 80,060
1,045 924
133,294 80,984
2005 2004
“RRHE  FENE
‘000 ‘000

A A
1,844,957 1,300,959
21,593 17,518

916 21,973

55,882 -
31,275 =
1,954,623 1,340,450
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Valuation i {8
At beginning of the year AEA)
Disposals &
Deficit on revaluation it 1L s 4t
At end of the year LS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3 Fff

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

During the year, the Group has disposed of all its
investment properties to independent third parties at an
aggregate consideration of HK$9,920,000.

The market value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

Long lease in Hong Kong WEBZ RIAHEA
Medium-term lease in Hong Kong A 2 HAFH A

M}T?ﬁ

=112

14. &Y%
THE GROUP

N
2005 2004
R o o = TR E Y AR
HK$°000 HKS'000
T ¥ C T
9,620 9,800
(9.620) =
- (180)
= 9,620

TAAAEE > A5 I 1) M 5L 5 =K B T
AHREYE > RERFES9 920,000
IE e

b gy R HIEGRE

2005 2004
ZRERE ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$000
T#T T e

- 8,020

- 1,600

= 9,620
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # & —F X H 4 = H =+ —H ILF &
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W3 - Wm Bk A
Land use
rights under
medium-  Leasehold Machinery Furniture
term leases land and Construction and and Motor
in the PRC buildings Pipelines in progress  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
il
L
PaR | gL B TR
f o RiEF H ERIR Rt e fi &

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS(000
Fibn FiEx Ti#x T Fibn Fibx FiEn FiEx

THE GROUP AER
COsT Bk
At Apri 1, 2004 REFEMENA—H - 48,388 35,823 134,243 12,101 4720 11,435 246,710
Addifions e 8,373 2,303 10,906 609,984 12,522 2639 10,695 657,422
Acquited on acquisition of kR B A A
subsidiories 3317 16,020 25,029 44970 20,452 53 1,382 111,693
Reclassification A - 155 32,183 (32.338) - - - -
Disposals e - - - - (67) (62) - (129)
At March 31, 2005 RZFRHE
ZH=1-H 11,690 66,866 103,941 756,859 45,008 7,820 28512 101569
DEPRECIATION, i RS RMH
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At April 1, 2004 AZEFWENA A - 4501 501 - 2,062 618 1449 9,241
Provided for the year R 204 1619 1958 - 3,402 1,051 2,837 11,07
Impairment loss reversed in the B R B 2
income sfafement (Note below) BR (i) - (2.668) - - - - - (2.668)
Eiiminated on disposals iH B R - - - - © (58) - (60)
At March 31, 2005 AR
ZHZ1+-R 204 3472 2549 - 5,462 1,611 4,286 17,584
NET BOOK VALUES TR {E
At March 31, 2005 RZFRRE
ZH=1-H 11,486 63,394 101,392 756,859 39,546 6,209 19,226 998,112
At March 31, 2004 RERME

S Byl = 43,867 35,232 134,243 10,039 4102 9,986 237,469




94

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

¥ 23
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Hi 755 ¥t 35 Ff 5%
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. W12 ~ W m st ()
THE COMPANY VA
Motor
vehicles
RH
HK$°000
i 0
COST BRAR
At April 1, 2004 A EENAAENHA—H 815
Additions wE 548
At March 31, 2005 WEEERAFEZH =+—H 1,363
DEPRECIATION hreg
At April 1, 2004 A EZENAENHA—H 148
Provided for the year A N A 329
At March 31, 2005 RoEERFE=H=+—H 477
NET BOOK VALUES LENTTRE
At March 31, 2005 RZEERAFE=H=+—H 886
At March 31, 2004 ATEREBNE=ZH =+—H 667
The net book value of leasehold land and buildings of A 4R T bt FH B b R B S 2 R T (R
the Group shown above comprises: 1 -
2005 2004
TR ZAERE AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T C T #C
In Hong Kong A s 2 = WAL A
Long lease 41,295 39,682
Outside Hong Kong SRS iR ek ]
Medium-term lease 22,099 4,185
63,394 43,867
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15. 15. Y12 ~ W Jm Kty (4

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At March 31, 2005, interest capitalised in construction in
progress amounted to HK$36,610,000 (2004:
HK$3,129,000).

The net book value of property, plant and equipment
includes an amount of HK$281,000 (2004: HK$398,000)
in respect of an asset held under a finance lease.

Nofe: During the year, the directors determined that the
impairment loss of HK$2,668,000 (2004: HK$5,987,000) of
certain leasehold land and buildings held by the
subsidiaries were reversed, due fo the increase in the
recoverable amount after change of the core business
of the Group.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Medium-term lease in A SR O RS S
Hong Kong - at cost — DURLAS RT3

Less: Impairment loss recognised

Properties held for development were reassessed at
their open market value at March 31, 2005 on an open
market existing use basis. The directors of the Company
consider that no further impairment loss (2004: nil) was
required to be charged to the consolidated income
statement.

W O RR I (E i 1R

NCERHEZA S —H o BAERT
g A1k 2 # B 5 36,610,000 ¢ (=%
T : 3,129,000 8) ©

WIoE ~ Wk B i 2 B (E P AL S AR IR

il A 2 B 281,000 0T (—FF

P44 : 398,000 ) ©

et o TAASAEIN - o W A R TR A 2
# T AL T S 2 2,668,0009 T
(= ZEPY4F ¢ 5,987,000 7t) i (i

A% AT g [E] G5 JE 38 A

CREERZME
THE GROUP
A 42

2005 2004

RN ZRER AR

HK$°000 HK$'000

F# T T T

23,200 43,100
(5.700) (6.900)

17,500 36,200

FrEg R ETI UM EY ER —FT L
FEZA=ZT-HZABWE S #HAMTS
BT Mgz HAEEATE A o AN A EHR
Ay (R4 - ) FAth 38 e 1R
A7 s RANER o
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost EL i R 9 N
Less: Impairment losses recognised ¥ : © i 5 3ol (s 1H

Amounts due from subsidiaries i J&§ 2~ 7] R K
Less: Allowance W B

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and
interest-free. In the opinion of the directors, the amounts
will not be repaid within twelve months from the
balance sheet date. Accordingly, they are classified as
non-current.

17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

e

Al RN I
THE COMPANY
AT
2005 2004
R o o = TR E Y AR
HK$°000 HKS'000
T ¥ C T
517,770 325,689
(51,494) (51,504)
466,276 274,185
370,129 356,527
(109,488) (137,176)
260,641 219,351
726,917 493,536

BT ) 2w K BRI R R S o SRR
Ty > B A R GHGI S B A A E R R
AR A AR > R B RS 5 R B A

H o
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17. A W& 2 7l 2 HE %5 (44)
MNZEERE=ZA=+—H » TEHBEL

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at March 31,

2005 are as follows:

A FEREUR

Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued nominal value of
incorporation Form of share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/  business registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure capital held by the Company Principal activities
il B B 3 HROBARA A0 E B 85 BB AT AR
i 4 ) 44 /BELY 37 /AR Va3 e [ X E
Directly Indirectly
H#% Il
% %
Faith Profit Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100 - Property holding
ERARA R Hik R AL HK$10,000 ESECRES
10,000 7t
Hai Xia Finance Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary - 100 Securities investment
T U i 5 A PR Hi iR A HK$2 HHHE
i L
2t
Iwai’s Holdings (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary - 100 Investment holding,
Limited B g HK$1,000 property investment
Non-voting = = and provision of
deferred shares management services
HK$1,000,000 fo group companies
(Note) BB - PERE SR
18 BT
1,000 7¢ KEAR
iy
1,000,000 7t
(Wat)
Wellgem Asia Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100 - Property development
P T A R A i HalIwA HK$10,000 VEE

10,0001 7t
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. B W 2 RE 4 (4)
Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued nominal value of
incorporation Form of share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/  business registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure capital held by the Company Principal activities
el oL G SRR MR e BT RA AR T i TR AT A
it 2 7 44 A /BB HER /A g AR /A A T B EX 3
Directly Indirectly
Hix 4%
% %
FEIRAEE (I PRC Wholly Registered 100 - Investment holding
R 1 owned US$29,800,000 and treasury
Central Asia Natural Gas foreign FRUS-N BEHR LI E
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* enterprise 29,800,000 7t
QT Sh T A 2
Beijing Zhongran Xiangke PRC Sino-foreign Registered - 60 Trading of natural
QOil Gas Technology il equity joint RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Company Limited* venture aEfit A construction
e e R R SR TG B AR HERAR
ARAF ¥ 20,000,0007¢ RIFEE
i
Elegant Cheer Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary - 100 Property holding
i el Hits ALY HK$10,000 LIRS
9 i
10,000 7t
China Gas Corporate Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100 - Provision of
Services Limited Hi A HK$100 secrefarial services
R R R A IR A R A 1 Mg TR AR IR
100 7t
Wuhan China Natural Gas PRC Limited Registered = 100 Investment
Investment Company Ha liability RMB69,980,000 holding
Limited* company LA A RG I
REPRIEHRA R A REAEA A N
69,980,000t
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. A A R 2 RE4R (4F)
Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued nominal value of
incorporation Form of share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/  business registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure capital held by the Company Principal activities
REM RO S EHR BT BITRA A B b OB AT RA
itV 2 ) 44 7 /BERY (57N /A /A 6 A% B FEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% [i] #%
% %
Yiyang Central Gas & City Gas ~ PRC Sino-foreign Registered - 80 Trading of natural gas
Development Co., Ltd.* Gl equity joint RMB44,000,000 and gas pipeline
i s TR T R SR T venture o it A construction
HEAH Lib/ g g o NG HERRR
44,000,0007¢ BRREE R
Wuhu City Natural Gas PRC Sino-foreign Registered = 90 Trading of natural gas
Development Company 1 equity joint RMB100,000,000 and gas pipeline
Limited* venture skt A construction
FEWD e R TR S R RS hAEERE NEY HERAR
100,000,0007¢ BMREE R
o e F R R A ] PRC Limited Registered - 80 Trading of natural gas
Gl liability RMB2,000,000 and gas pipeline
company o it A construction
AR FEALA A NG HERAR
2,000,0007T BRREER LG
AR EA R AR PRC Limited Registered - 70 Trading of natural gas
Gile liability RMB1,000,000 and gas pipeline
company FE i A construction
HREEAH N HERAR
1,000,000t BMREE R
B AR A b & PRC Limited Registered - 80 Trading of natural gas
HRAH Gl liability RMB500,000 and gos pipeline
company o it A construction
HRFEALA N HERAR
500,0007t BRREER LG
Je 5 7 AR B A PRC Limifted Registered - 51 Trading of natural gas
ARAH Gile liability RMB2,680,000 and gas pipeline
company aEfi & A construction
HRFEAH N HERRR
2,680,0007T BMREE R
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Paid up
issued

share capital/
registered
capital
BR T BT RA
/LA AR

Registered
RMB70,000,000
RAUNES
IN:
70,000,0007¢

Registered
RMB2,000,000
ik A
N
2,000,0007C

Ordinary
US$100
100% 7t

Registered
RMB20,000,000
FE A
N
20,000,0007C

Registered
RMB72,000,000
FEf A

N -
72,000,0007t

Registered
RMB35,000,000
N
35,000,0007C

B R I

17. A Mg~/ 2 WE 45 (48)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Place of
incorporation Form of
or registration/  business
Name of subsidiary operations structure
aEM RO SRR GEHAR A T i b B AT A
i 2 W) 4 7 /BN HER /A 6 A% T B
Directly Indirectly
Hi% fi] 4%
% %
Yichang Zhongran City Gas PRC Limited - 70
Development Limited* il liability
HE PRI IR A R company
HRAT HRFEAH
B AR AT R 7] PRC Limited - 100
H liability
company
HRFAEA
Clever Decision Enterprises BVI Incorporated 100 -
Limited SR LR FE L
b R SR R PRC Wholly - 100
HR AT il owned
foreign
enferprise
SO
Huainan China Gas City Gas PRC Sino-foreign - 100
Development Co., Ltd.* il equity joint
("Huainan China Gas") venture
T AR I R SRR A TR O B A
(TR 4R )
Suizhou Zhongran City Gas PRC Sino-foreign - 100
Development Co., Ltd.* il equity joint
("Suizhou Zhongran") venture
B e R 380 T R S T PR D fAEELE
(TREM kD)

Principal activities

EX E373

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AHERAR
B R E R

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

HERAR
EMRE R

Investment holding

Investment holding

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
AHRARR
BMREER L

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
HERMR
R E R
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. A A R 2 RE4R (4F)
Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued nominal value of
incorporation Form of share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/  business registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure capital held by the Company Principal activities
REM RO S EHR BT BITRA A B b OB AT RA
itV 2 ) 44 7 /BERY (57N /A /A 6 A% B FEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% [i] #%
% %
Xiaogan Zhenrong Gas PRC Sino-foreign Registered - 65 Trading of natural
Co,, Ltd.* Gl equity joint RMB48,950,000 gas and gas pipeline
FRIRRRARARA A venture o it A construction
Ll g g o NG HERRR
48,950,0007C BRREE R
Xiaogan Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd. * PRC Sino-foreign Registered = 100 Trading of natural
ZREMKRFARATH il equity joint RMB16,002,000 gos and gas pipeline
venture HAURZES construction
fAEERE NEY HERAR
16,002,0007T BMREE R
Hanchuen Jiaxu Gas PRC Sino-foreign Registered = 100 Trading of natural
Co,, Ltd.* Gl equity joint RMB11,274,000 gas and gas pipeline
BIEBRARARAR venture ok it A construction
PAA B A NG HERAR
11,274,0007t BMRREER G
Yumeng Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd.* PRC Sino-foreign Registered - 100 Trading of natural
ZEEMKRRARATH il equity joint RMB9,708,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture HAURES construction
fAE B NEY HERRR
9,708,000t BMREE R
Yingcheng Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd.*  PRC Sino-foreign Registered = 100 Trading of natural
39 3% 1 R A8 R PR/ Lo equity joint RMB10,074,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture o it A construction
PAMA B A NG HERAR
10,074,0007t BRREER G
Dangyang Zhongran Gas PRC Wholly Registered - 100 Trading of natural
Co., Ltd.* il owned HK$20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
EHTRRARARAR foreign skt A construction
enterprise 20,000,000i# & HERAR
ST BMREE R
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Paid up
issued

share capital/
registered
capital

BR T BT RA
/LA AR

Registered
US$600,000
RAURES
600,000% &

Registered
US$3,625,000
FE A
3,625,000% 1

Registered
HK$2,000,000
FEf A
2,000,000 1©

Registered
HK$2,000,000
FE A
2,000,000 7t

Registered
RMB10,000,000
FEf A

N
10,000,0007c

B R I

17. A Mg 2 7l 2 WE 45 (44)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Place of
incorporation Form of
or registration/  business
Name of subsidiary operations structure
RO EGE  EHR AR T B B AT IR A
i 24 ) 44 T V&-E3% WA /R AR T LA
Directly Indirectly
Hi% fi] 4%
% %
Pizhou Zhongran City Gas PRC Wholly - 100
Development Co., Ltd.* 1 owned
B e AR Sa T A SRR foreign
HRAH enferprise
ST B
Suzhou Zhongran City Gas PRC Sino-foreign = 75
Development Co., Ltd.* il equity joint
8 N PRI T MR 8 venture
ARAF fAEELE
Cangzhou Zhongran City Gas ~ PRC Wholly = 100
Development Co., Ltd.* 1 owned
T8 RS T A SRR foreign
AR E enferprise
ST B A
Nanpixian Zhongran City Gas PRC Wholly - 100
Development Co., Ltd.* il owned
T KB MR T R SR T foreign
AR E enferprise
SR E ¥
Wuhuxian Zhongran City Gas PRC Sino-foreign = 100
Development Co., Ltd.* il equity joint
HED A R A SR venture
HRAF MG B

Principal activities

EX E373

Trading of natural

gas and gas pipeline
BHHRAR

BMREE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
HERAR
LR R

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BHHRAR
B RE R

Trading of natural

gas and gas pipeline
HERAR

BRAEE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BHHRAR
BMREER L
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. MBS A 2 4w ()
Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued nominal value of
incorporation Form of share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/  business registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure capital held by the Company Principal activities
GRUP WA T R 32 BUL T BATRA R W B BT R
it Je 2 7 42 7 /R (3% /A E A /AR A B FEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% il 4%
% %
Qinzhou Zhongran City Gas PRC Wholly Registered = 100 Trading of natural
Development Co., Ltd.* il owned RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
SO R RS TR foreign skt A construction
AR enterprise N HERAR
VIR g 20,000,0007C R EERE
Yangzhong Zhongran City Gas ~ PRC Wholly Registered - 100 Trading of natural
Development Co., Lid.* Gl owned US$1,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
1 o e RSB T A SR T foreign FE it A construction
HIRA A enterprise 1,000,000 & HERAR
Sh R B 3 BMRREER
Tianmen Zhongran City Gas PRC Wholly Registered = 100 Trading of natural
Development Co., Ltd.* e owned HK$9,450,000 gas and gas pipeline
R A3 7 MR B foreign skt A construction
R enterprise 9,450,000i ¢ BAEARR
IR gl R EERE

* English name is for identification purposes only.

¥ BECE R A
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Note: The deferred shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights fo dividends or to
receive notice of or to afttend or vote at any general
meeting of the company or to participate in any

distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding af the end of the year.

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17.

o 255 ¥l 3 IR

T it B A W 2 WE AR (A

EREINERR LA EEERIEEA
THEEBIAEES EEME AR - #HH
A8 o PR A B 2 R A B R
BIRICR -

[«

AR A B4 I JF oy AR SR B KR A - T
T B AS B BB~ R
AN AU RO G -
Bk U & b B SR R
AL AT 5 IR Z HEF o

5 A 5 7 4B 40 7S B 2 G0
B% -

Share of net assets

A 7 1

BT BAME

Unlisted shares, at cost

18. R 4 F 2 HE 4
THE GROUP

N L
2005 2004
“EFLE —ERENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7T T T
20,454 -

THE COMPANY

A
2005 2004
“EFLE —ERENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7T T T

16,456
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE

18.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

As at March 31,
following associate:

2005, the Group had interest in the

18. A&

S 255l 2 R

N Z R (AE)

A)

l/

A

\CEREREZAST—H o KRR

Form of Place of Principal
business incorporation/ place of
Name of entity structure registration operation
Ak B
HRAMH RHERMEL R e
Beijing Jinggang Gas Sino-foreign PRC PRC
Development Company equity joint 1 g
Limited venfure
(*Beijing Jinggang’)* NG B R
s R A RA R
(i)

* English name is for identification purposes only.

During the year, the Group acquired 49% equity interests
in Beijing Jinggang at a consideration of RMB7,634,000
(equivalent to HK$7,210,000).
acquisition of Beijing Jinggang of HK$5,033,000 was

Discount on the
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement on the acquisition date.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, all the equity
owners of Beijing Jinggang have agreed to inject
RMB20,000,000 as additional capital
Jinggang in accordance with their proportion of equity
interests held. The Group has injected RMB9,800,000
(equivalent to HK$9,246,000) accordingly.

to Beijing

N S F R A RE AR
Proportion of
nominal value
of registered
Registered capital held
Capital by the Group Nature of business
R LL
Pk
GAUTIES BAmELY  EHEE
%
RMB30,000,000 49 Trading of gas
AR ME#HE
30,000,000t

¥ ECH RRE A

AE A A A T i i A o s B AE49%
R fE N R ¥ 7,634,0000c (#1 & i
7,210,000%; 7)) © Y i b 50 50 s 2 3 i
5,033,000 7t H 32 7 die 1 H 117 45 & i
Tt 7% P HERR. o

MR WO W > BT A LR R I R R A
NE R FARE S 5 2 A L il > i b
TR AR AT BN R 20,000,0007T o A
£ T A 1 vE B N R 09,800,000 (H 14
9.246,000% 7t) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The investment securities represent approximately 5.1% equity

interests in Greater China Holdings Limited held by the Group.

IR+ %l% =3
H\Zl‘ 25 JFI:X’ I}ﬁ A
For the year ended March 31,2005 # £ ~FEHHE=H =+—H L % &
19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 19. WA E
Investment Other
securities investments Total
&I oAl 4 A5t
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
TERBRHE CEBTPIE ZRBRHE CETIE RFRE ZTP4E
HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS’'000 HK$°000 HKS’'000
T #C T T T #c T C T #C T T
THE GROUP Ny
Equity securities listed R &# L1 2
in Hong Kong lil&N S 5,490 5,490 14,430 14,800 19,920 20,290
Market value i 18 5,856 4,392 14,430 14,800 20,286 19,192
Carrying amount W T
analysed i
for reporting it 2
purpose as: M :
Current T Eh - - 14,430 14,800 14,430 14,800
Non-current FE L) 5,490 5,490 - - 5,490 5,490
5,490 5,490 14,430 14,800 19,920 20,290
THE COMPANY AT
Equity securities REB LT Z
listed in Hong Kong lil&NE - 5,220 = - - 5,220
Market value i 58 - 4,176 - - = 4,176
Carrying amount W T
analysed Wi
for reporting 13t 5L
purpose as: i
Non-current JE Wi B - 5,220 = = = 5,220
Note: Mt -

EET S Pk SUNESEPNGIE 3 S
P RN FH5.1% L BA M -
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For the year ended March 31,2005 # % “FFZ HA4F = H =+ —H 1L FE
20. GOODWILL 20. P
THE GROUP
AL
HKS’'000
T #7C
COosT B AAE
At April 1, 2003 W oEBE=FWH—H 20,784
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries A T 05 i B
during the year (note 36) JTEEAE (K 7£36) 93,501
Arising on acquisition of additionall S8 B G 2 ) EE Ak
interest in a subsidiary T EE A 226
Eliminated on disposals of subsidiaries AN B R A
during the year ST i £ (5.470)
At March 31, 2004 N_FEENE=H =+—H 109,041
At April 1, 2004 W RFP A H —H
- as stated above — & E3CHE S 109,041
- adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 3 — PR AN A s BT ER R v ) 5 3% 2 T
- eliminatfion of accumulated — TS B E I B
amortisation (nofe 2) (Kt #E2) (1,908)
- as restated — BHEY| 107,133
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries A A Wi R > D T E AR
during the year (nofe 36) (K7 36) 51,718
Arising on acquisitions of additional 8 B B B ) EE A
inferest in subsidiaries (note 45(iii)) BT E A (i aE45 i) 50,543
At March 31, 2005 N _EEHF=ZA=+—H 209,394
AMORTISATION 55
At April 1, 2003 MR-FEZ=4FH—H 654
Charge for the year AE NS 1,959
Eliminated on disposals of subsidiaries Hb B o JB 2 D B (705)
At March 31, 2004 REBEFENFE=H=+—H 1,908
At April 1, 2004 W ZEFPAE H —H
- as stated above — & E3CHE S 1,908
- adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 3 — PR A0 A s B TS i e B AF 39 2 9
- written off against cost (nofe 2) — A8 (FfaE2) (1,908)
As restated and as at March 31, 2005 BEINRA ZEFEZRFEZH =+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNTS iR i
At March 31, 2005 M_FERE=ZH=+—H 209,394
At March 31, 2004 REBEFENFE=H=+—H 107,133
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21.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

20. GOODWILL (continued)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment in the
financial year in which the acquisition takes place, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units
("CGUs") are determined based on value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by
management for the next five to seven years and
extrapolates cash flows for the following five to seven
years based on the estimated growth rate of 3%. This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets. The rates used to discount the
forecast cash flows for CGUs are from 15% to 17%. In the
opinion of the directors, no material impairment loss is
identified as at March 31, 2005.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The amount includes HK$34,187,000 which was paid fo
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

o 255 e o R

=112

20. FE (4)

745 T A B P WSO 2 A AR B B4R B A
BAT WA > MR B A B 5K W AT
RE WL (H -

Bl R (TBl e LR A]) Al B
B 4% (A B (B 8 R - sl B3GR B (£
ZRBR R EE 2 i - R R R
Y5 B e R RS (E o B % Rk H A
AT Al 4B 88 2 IR [ M 3R 4 7 A B 2 R E
JE\ B 2 B HI b A 5T 40 R o SR R RS
N TR S o () O AR
8 AR 1) R T T 355 OR A 2 B e T 7 o

ALEEAEMEAMUERRALFEE LE LR
MG HARRBEREREA > UER
BMRRIWER AR L ELFEZHER
B o W R AR 3% Ml A B T 45 P R
MEgRR - ARBEELBEAZBERE
P EBIBE17TRAE - EERS >
B EERAEZA = — H B E KA B
e o (e 4

21, WY - DS B

% A IE AL A O 3~ R B S A T —
KM BN E — 2D O R R AR S A
34,187,000 7t °
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22.

23.

DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amount at March 31, 2004 represented the deposits
paid by the Company for the acquisition of 100% equity
interests in United Keen Investment Limited (“United
Keen”) and Glorywish Investment Limited ("Glorywish”).
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of United Keen
and Glorywish are trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction.

During the year, the Company acquired United Keen but
did not proceed the acquisition of Glorywish. Deposit
paid for acquisition of Glorywish of HK$5,714,000 was

refunded during the year.

No deposit was paid for investments at March 31, 2005.

INVENTORIES

The following is an analysis of DU B A7 B B R

inventories at the reporting date: H #2534t
Construction materials -
Consumables and spare parts TH FE i B s 14
Natural gas KINH

The inventories are stated at cost. Cost of inventories
recognised as expenses during the vyear is
HK$115,335,000 (2004: HK$23,808,000).

22. &4

A 4R B S AR A H

M OEERNAE=H =+ —HZHEREA
4y 5 JZ B United Keen Investment
Limited ([ United Keen)]) & Glorywish
Investment Limited ([ Glorywishl) 100%
Ji& RE T SZ AT 2 4% 4 o Kt 8@ 4 &l United
Keen K& Glorywish> 3= % 275 £ B 8 K R
IR B B R o

b= {2
HH

RAEN > A2 v 2 il United KeenfH bz
& U 1§ Glorywish o ik i Glorywish 2 #%
4:5,714,000% o6 £ 74 45 AR % -

8
&__.

23. #&

TEHAEZA=ZT AR EX
g% -

THE GROUP
2005 2004
ZFFLE —ERENAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7T T 7T
33,387 11,475
1.886 1,239

3,556 -
38,829 12,714

fr B MASIE - FRERLHXZHER
A A % 115,335,000% 7T (= F & JU4 -
23,808,000#: 7T) -
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,HﬂL

-

=
IO T T

a

g

7% B 5

24, B (ERH) & F 268 TRE

THE GROUP
A4 M
2005 2004
RN CEF AR
HK$'000 HKS$ 000
T C it o
Contracts in progress at balance REAH ZTE
sheet date: I
Contract costs incurred plus recognised O35 2 & Z A N 2 AR
profits less recognised losses T A 5 £ A R M 1R 378,496 150,943
Less: progress billings R c R AT K (12,724) (7.851)
365,772 143,092
Represented by: (Ve
Due from customers included B VB
in current assets & FRH 366,664 143,435
Due to customers included in FHA U B A 2 B AT
current liabilities &P IH (892) (343)
365,772 143,092

At March 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no retention
monies held by customers for contract work performed.
At March 31, 2005, advances received from customers

for contract work amounted to HK$19,474,000 (2004: H

HK$7,296,000) which were included in trade and other

payables.

#t)

JH

MR-FZTAFER _FEFNF=A=+—
H oo Sl 4 fR B R TE i & P 2 AT 2 B 40
TEMmMEAE - R _BLEHRE A =+ —

CEMAEHTEEF R BAHE

o

19.474,000% ¢ (—FF W4 : 7,296,000

> 3l B BB AST R A % Al A+ 3k
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. & 5 S BR 2R e o Ath 1 i BR TE
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 fo 60 A 4K [ 0] H & 5 % F $E 47 3130-60H 2 {5
days to its trade customers. B o
The following is an aged analysis of trade and other A HRE H o> B 5 I R R A R i iR
receivables at the reporting date: TH 2 BRES 73 BT an R
THE GROUP
2005 2004
RN R R AR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T T F it oo
0 - 30 days 0-30H 7,930 2,198
31 - 60 days 31-60H 11,474 2,519
61 - 90 days 61-90H 78 2,568
91 - 120 days 91-120H 2,295 514
121 - 180 days 121-180H 473 -
Over 180 days 180H MU Lk 6,974 1,910
Trade receivables B 7 REC IR 3K 29,224 9,709
Deposits paid for construction # e
materials i< 7.161 179,433
Other receivables, deposits and HoAh R WS BRI
prepayments i 4 B AT IR 48,881 63,419
Deposit paid to a minority shareholder W RE R
of a subsidiary for acquisition of T[] J2g 2 i 2 7 B R
property, plant and equipment A2 ¥4 = 37,066
Amount due from a minority JHeE Wi — ] Bft JB8 /A
shareholder of a subsidiary DB R K I 495 1,587
85,761 291,214
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27.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade and other
payables at the reporting date:

THE GROUP
ARAEE

2005 2004
“ERNLE BRI
HK$°000 HK$°000
F T T T
0 - 60 days 0-60H 49,720 24,695
61 - 90 days 61-90H 6,724 1,169
91 - 120 days 91-120H 6,182 842
121 - 180 days 121-180H 14,490 57
Over 180 days 180H DA | 17,880 3,946
Trade payables 2 5 HEAS B K 94,996 30,709
Other payables and accrued charges At B A R T % T S 75,880 41,606
170,876 72,315

AMOUNTS DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER
OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at not more
than 2% per annum and repayable in year 2013.
Accordingly, amount is classified as non-current liability
as at the balance sheet date.

W% A JH Jy ST - 1% AE RO R 2)E g1
B WiER TR - ZAEE - B K
FR AR HIIE R B Al -
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28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. 4T K H At & &
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
A 4L H| VNS |
2005 2004 2005 2004

“EFLE —ZTNF ZEFAE —“FTNF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T#70 Ti# T T#7T T

Bank loans SRAT B K 1,180,950 571,666 = =
Mortgage loan i 48 B K 18,158 20,053 18,158 20,053
Other loans oAt B2 3 124,338 = - -

1,323,446 591,719 18,158 20,053

Secured ZEE L 967,803 591,719 18,158 20,053
Unsecured 4 A1 1 355,643 = = =

1,323,446 591,719 18,158 20,053

The maturity profile of the above w4 2 B

loans is as follows: B4 T -
On demand or within one year BRI B R — F NEAT 172,928 278,489 2,116 2,061
More than one year, but not Z i —4FEH

exceeding two years AN T 94 T A 72,705 24,991 2,197 2,134
More than two years, but not Z R AR H

exceeding five years 78 4 A 420,049 151,057 7.104 6,867
More than five years Z ik HAE 657,764 137,182 6,741 8,991

1,323,446 591,719 18,158 20,053
Less: Amount due within one year W — A NEHEEIA
shown under current liabilities ) AR K IH (172,928) (278,489) (2.116) (2,061)

Amount due affer one year — AR B HE 2 B E 1,150,518 313,230 16,042 17,992
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 29. [l il & R I
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AR AR B o AR 8 )
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
AR A 3k T AR AH 2 ) 3k Z BLAE
2005 2004 2005 2004

SRR SFFNE SRRHE “FFN4E
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
F#T — THET  F#T  TET

Amounts payable under a WM EHE
finance lease: AT 4% -
Within one year —4ER 66 132 64 112
In the second fo fifth year Y
inclusive (B4 B 4F) 131 197 121 185
197 329 185 297
Less: Future finance charges W AR AR A 2 12) (32) = =
Present value of lease obligations FH A R 2 BIE 185 297 185 297
Less: Amount due for settlement W — AN E S AT
within one year (shown under ZAIE (B AE B
current liabilities) B A7) (64) a12)
121 185
It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, AL BUR SRR S B A T
plant and equipment under finance lease. The lease W~ s Kk o F3E o HEFE
term is 3 years. For the year ended March 31, 2005, the FHAFEZHAH=+—HIFE  EHEHES
effective borrowing rate was approximately 8% per AER A B 8 (T P4 8JE) o
annum (2004: 8%). Interest rate is fixed at the contract B TR FT#) B A E o FH A5 LA 2 iR
date. The lease is on a fixed repayment basis and no FNHEMETT S 5 Ml 2 50 BSR4 45 A
arrangement has been entered into for contingent L o
rental payments.
The Group’s obligations under a finance lease are A A5 [ il AR 2 AR TS DA AR A R

secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased asset. T G R L 2 PRRCAE IR o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

Issued and fully paid:

At April 1, 2003

Issue of new ordinary shares

Conversion of convertible bonds

Conversion of preference shares
fo ordinary shares

At March 31, 2004

Issue of new ordinary shares
(Notes a, b, ¢ and d)

Conversion of convertible bonds
(Note e)

Exercise of share options (Nofe 44)

Exercise of warrants (Nofe f)

At March 31, 2005

EE

CBITRALE :

REFF=FNA—H
BATHE WM
o PR

REERWE=H=+—H
BT SR

(Htita, b, ckd)
AT S

(Htste)
T RERCAE (ff7E44)
TR RS (fff o)

ROBREEZA=H-H

AV}
The
30. AR
Convertible
Ordinary shares preference shares Total
T 1m e 5 Bt i
No. of No. of
shares shares
‘000 HK$ 000 ‘000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
HK$0.01 HKS1
each each
T 1 T MBI
1 ¢ i (6 1 ¢ i (6
0.01i% 7 Tibc 170 Tt Tt
9,000,000 90,000 124,902 124,902 214,902
1,212,407 12,125 6,298 6,298 18,423
280,000 2,800 - - 2,800
16,922 169 - - 169
48,451 484 (6.298) (6.298) (5.814)
1,557,780 15,578 - - 15,578
430,100 4,301 - - 4,301
81,153 811 - - 811
5,780 58 - - 58
170,000 1,700 - - 1,700
2,244,813 22,448 - - 22,448
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

On January 16, 2004, arrangements were proposed to
make for a private placement to Mr. Liu Ming Hui, an
executive director of the Company, of 130,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a
price of HK$0.65 per share, representing a discount of
9.72% to the closing market price of the Company’s shares
on January 16, 2004, being the latest trading day before
the date of the announcement issued by the Company
on January 21, 2004. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$85 million were applied as to approximately HK$36
million for the repayments of the Group’s short term
borrowings, approximately HK$13 million for the
contribution to the enlarged registered capital of # 5l
approximately HK$31 million for the contribution of the
natural gas projects in Yiyang and Suizhou and the
remaining balance as general working capital of the
Group. The advance payment of approximately HK$58
million from Mr. Liu Ming Hui was received before March
31, 2004. The new shares were issued under the special
mandate granted to the directors at the special general
meeting held on March 4, 2004. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$27 million was received upon the
allotment of the shares.

On September 30, 2004, arrangements were made for a
private placement to an independent investor of
90,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at a price of HK$0.52 per share, representing a
discount of 16.13% to the closing market price of the
Company’'s shares on September 28, 2004. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$48 million were applied as
to approximately HK$14 million for the repayment of the
Group’s short term borrowings, approximately HK$25.3
million for the investment of the natural gas projects in
Dangyang, Nanpixian, Beijing and Wuhuxian,
approximately HK$3.4 million for the repayment of
convertible notes and the remaining balance as general
working capital of the Group. The issue of 90,000,000
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on August 12, 2004.

o 255 e o R

=112

30. &4 (#)
i

(@

®)

R REPNE—H FRH > 2k A A
Y47 3 B W ST AR DLFA N B 7 UL
72\ 7] 130,000,000 /% % i 11 {6.0.01 #s o
B > A S B 0,653 T - K
AAFRZFEFNME—A+HANHA BIAR
T 8% O M i 2 de 4% 32 55 F) T i i A
18 9.72% T % 5 JH 9 4 485,000,000
# ot - H 4 36,000,000 T -
13,000,000 7t % 31,000,000k 7543 5ll I
T 2 A 4 T D 4~ ) R RS A
R A M A 3 e 1 B % B N 2 R AR
FEEEER > SRBO MR LR — B
A e o B U OME G R BRI RO A
58,000,000 L it ~FF WA= =+ —
HOATHRAS o B J9 i — F R M 4E = A
VO H 5 B 2 SR B O 4 T 3 S 2 A A
AT RS o AHKEZBGEY
27,000,000 Tt i F 8% i i 2 B -

W EENENA=ZTH  ANA R — 4
M7 3 FL L 5 48 28 7] 90,000,000 %
A T {EO.01 35 0 2 5 4 I (B A% 2 B
e 6r0.52¥ o0 > B FEPAEJLH =+ N
H 48 8w B 2 Wi 4738 16.13% - Bifs
X JA W FE 4 48,000,000 5 H oA
14,000,000 ot ~ 25,300,000 J© &
3,400,000 76 43 Fll i 1 15 % 74 45 [ 4 1A
A RN E G dus R WuhuxionZ
RIRFIEH - GREE A A4 B — i
4 o #51790,000,000 8 B 7y T M — &
TPUAE A + = H B B 2 A v i 5 AR
K& 1R T 8 F 2 — M HE T 34T -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

©

(C))

©)

®

On October 31, 2004, arrangements were made for a
private placement to an independent investor of
210,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at a price of HK$0.61 per share, representing a
discount of 39.6% to the closing market price of the
Company’s shares on October 28, 2004. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$128 million were applied as to
approximately HK$10 million for the repayments of the
Group’s short tferm borrowings, approximately HK$20
million for the acquisition of projects located in Xiaogan,
approximately HK$91 million for the investments in projects
located in Yangzhong, Suzhou and Dangyang and the
remaining balance as general working capital of the
Group. These shares were issued under a special mandate
granted to the directors at the special general meeting of
the Company held on December 9, 2004.

On February 22, 2005, pursuant to a subscription letter on
October 29, 2003, the Company issued 100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of
HK$1.128 per share to Merrill Lynch International (*ML").
The details of the subscription letter have been set out in
note 34. The net proceeds of approximately HK$113,000
were applied as general working capital of the Group.

During the year, the holder of convertible bonds exercised
the rights to convert US$5,600,000 (approximately
HK$43,442,000) convertible bonds into 81,153,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each.

On September 28, 2004, pursuant to agreements made
between the Company and two independent investors,
260,000,000 warrants were issued at a price of HK$0.01
per warrant. Each of the warrants will give the holder the
right to subscribe in cash for one share of the Company
at an initial subscription price of HK$0.66 per share of
HK$0.01 of the Company at any time from the date of
issue thereof up fo and including September 27, 2009.

During the year, 170,000,000 warrants were exercised and
170,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at a price of HK$0.66 per share were issued.

These shares issued during the year rank pari passu

with the then existing shares in all respects.

30. &4 (#)

©

(@)

©)

®

W ZFERWEFH=+—H > AN HE ] —
2B EHERLANRE AR A A
210,000,000/ %5 Ji% 1 {50.01 # 7t 2 & %
We o fEAE BB 0.613 T - B FE
POAE+ A =AW A AR A 2 T A A
#39.6% - BT 15 3K JH % % 47 128,000,000
w ot o H b £ 10,000,000 & -
20,000,0007% 7t /% 91,000,000 7t 43 1l
VEAR R A AR B 2 6 A B~ WSO 6 8 2 U
ZHEE RBCER B BN RO 2 H
H > SREAEAERZ —REEEE - 5%
ITR% 5 ety TR 4R — FE W 4E+_H LA
el N S S PN - |
BEHETT #EAT ©

MOEBEREA A+ ZH > AR ARE
CEREEETA T LE 2R
Merrill Lynch International (TML]) # 17
100,000 /% 4 i 1 {5 0.01 %5 7 2 3 %8 it >
54 B 0 BERE O3 1.1 287 70 - sl 2 5F
1% R B R34 o FiT 45 3K E W AE 49 113,000
W0 FIMEAS 4 [ — R A 4 o

AN AT R 2R R A N AT (E
5,600,000 7t (#143,442,000% 5) AJ #
Wt Zr < HEA > LAB 181,153, 0004% & i
T {E0.01# 78 2 ¥ 78 it

A EENAEIL A NH o AL AR B
LT {37 8 S A% A R 2 ok o DA (R AR
i #E 7% 0.01 ¥ 7T %% 17 260,000,00017 7% Bt
RERE o RBBCHERS < Fp AT NPT IR 8847 H A9 =
A RFIEIA — L B HRH
1 58 I 0. 661 7T UL 4 52 A 24 A
B B (E0.01 3 T 2 Be iy -

JR4E A > 170,000,000 58 i HE w8 © 4T
- A % 5 R 30,661 T 2 H A%
#47170,000,000/4% & i 1 {E0.01#: 7T 2

T A N AT 2 B A B AT T ThG B B A A 4
EAH M AFHEA
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31. RESERVES 31. fitfhi
Share  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
Rl SARSR  HERE  ZiEHR il
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Tk T T T8
(note 2 below)
(FLH T M2
THE COMPANY KA
At April 1, 2003 REZE=4R—H 284,290 94,712 - (252724 126,278

Private placements MARE 214,500 = = - 214,500
Conversion of converfible bonds Bk RS 10,717 - - - 10,717
Conversion of preference shares 0RO M 5814 - - - 5814
Share issue expenses Tty 817 5 52 (9.432) - - - (9.432)
Expenses on issuing convertible bonds BT A 2 B (932) - - - (932)
Proceeds of private placements ARAAREZ

received in advance B 58 - - 58,000 - 58,000
Net loss for the year ERERR - - - 23679)  (23,679)
At March 31, 2004 RZZEWE=F=1—H 504,957 94,712 58,000 (276,403) 381,266
Proceeds from issue of new warrants BATH R R 2 R - - 2,600 - 2,600
Premium orising on private placements PN B A 2 W 1 255,212 - (58,000) - 197,212
Premium arising on conversion of BTRR RS

converfible bonds it 42,631 - - - 42,631
Premium arising on exercise of share 7 R PR B 7

options pait 4,566 - - - 4,566
Exercise of warrants TR IR 112,200 - (1,700) - 110,500
Share issue expenses Bty 817 B 5 (10,130) - - - (10,130)
Expenses on issuing convertible bonds BT R A 2 B X (1,283) - - - (1,283)
Expenses on issuing warrants BATRIRHE RS 2 B (190) - - - (190)
Net loss for the year FEBRTE - - - (29,502) (29.502)
At March 31, 2005 REZZAFEZA=+—H 907,963 94,712 900 (305,905) 697,670
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31. fitfh (4)

31. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the

@)

difference between the underlying net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company as a result of the
group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1995 and the nominal amount of the Company’s
share capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

The amount at March 31, 2004 represented the advance
payment received before March 31, 2004 from the
subscriber for the private placement of which the shares
have been issued and allotted during the year ended
March 31, 2005. The amount at March 31, 2005 represents
the proceeds received for the subscription of warrants.

At March 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had no
reserve available for distribution.

Mtat

M

2

=

ARAFZHABBRTIEARFR — U
AEIR oy w By B R AT 22 4 B R AL
2 TR Je 2 S WA 2 A O
L 3 S T R AT AR W B AE AR 2 AR
N A T E = 2 R

MR S — LN — A % (RIERD)
AN Rl Z ML IR TS AT IR o ST
T2 N AU T > A T AR BBk 3
HXCE IR SR A BB S AE UK

(Q) AR T IR BAE A 1% Ak fE R B
fEIH 5 5%

(b) A2 Al E 2w S BUE (E B R A
o BHLHC O B 4T B AS B B 3 ik B MR 2 A8
A o

A EZFWAEZH =+ — H Z 3R
FRME=H =+ — HHTK A AR &R
N Z FGKIE » RN ) B R B
CEEFRAESAE+— HIRFEENRE K
AT o “EERHFE=H =+ — H Z A
o R M M S AR 2 T A A

FENER FFRF=A =

H o> A0 w3 4 w] B 23 IR 2 folf o
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32.

33.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts of the Company are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed term of repayment. The
subsidiaries have confirmed that repayment of the
amounts will not be demanded within one year from
the balance sheet date and accordingly, the amounts
are classified as non-current.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

Pursuant fo an agreement dated June 10, 2003, the
Company issued a convertible note (the “Note”)
amounting fo US$6 million (equivalent to
HK$46,800,000) to an independent third party, Eastern
Linker Holdings Limited. The Note bears interest at the
rate of 2% per annum on the outstanding principal
amount of the Note. The conversion price is HK$2 per
share and would be matured at 24 months from the
date of the issue of the Note.

During the year, the Group and the Company repaid
US$1,397,000 (equivalent to HK$10,900,000) to the
holder of the Note.

As at March 31, 2005, the Note will be repaid within 12
months after the balance sheet date and amount was
classified as current liabilities.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

32.

33.

KBt )& 2~ w] 2 3R

R ) 2 B 2 TR A S - e % [
S W I o B 2% W R R N B A A F R
FE—4E R R FCESR - L SR
o R B A A o

AR SR
AW R A

WRiE =TT =ZFAH T HZ W AAHA
[w] — 48 37 2% = J7 Eastern Linker Holdings
Limited# 17 6,000,000 J© (A & 7
46,800,000% j6) 2 Al # B A48 ([ 3
#1) o BIUREIEZ RERA S HILER
REFE o A 5 B R 24T > AR
SEPREEAT B AR F 2418 H e -

R AL RA N EMHAH1,397,000
%t (F#% 74 10,900,000 7T) T =B R H
Ao

MR-FERFE=ZA=+—H » ZEHEHR
A AR WA WA A IE R 5 A
B A -
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 34. W MR fE 5

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

On October 29, 2003, the Company and ML entered into
a subscription agreement ("Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company would issue up to US$41 million 1.0
per cent unlisted and unsecured convertible bonds due
2008 in five franches ("Bonds”) and ML subscribed in an
aggregate principal amount of US$6 million (“Tranche 1
Bonds”) under whereas the Agreement, the Company
would grant to ML options to subscribe for additional
four franches of the Bonds in aggregatfe principal
amount of up to US$35 million. Under the terms and
conditions of the Bonds, ML might convert the Bonds at
any time from and including the respective date of
issue of the Bonds up fo the date falling one week prior
to October 30, 2008 ("Maturity Date”). The Bonds could
be converted, at the option of ML, either at (i) HK$1.128
initially (subject to adjustments) or (i) 90 percent of the
average of any eight closing prices per share as
selected by ML during the 30 consecutive business days
immediately prior to the date on which a conversion
notice of ML is received by the Company and such
price shall not be less than the par value of the shares
on the date of conversion. The Bonds may be early
redeemed at an amount equal to 105% of the principal
amount of the Bonds plus accrued inferest at any time
after September 30, 2006 with the written request of
either the Company on ML.

Besides, the Company has also enfered into a
subscription letter on October 29, 2003 with ML pursuant
to which the Company granted to ML, the rights to
subscribe for new shares of the Company (the “Letter”).
Under the terms of the Letter, ML would have a right to
subscribe for new shares up to 15% of the principal
amount of each tranche of the Bonds issued divided by
0.94 with a subscription price of HK$1.128 per share
(subject to adjustments). The subscription right are
exercisable by ML at any time from and including the
date of issue of the relevant tfranche of the Bonds to
and including the Maturity Date.

A4 B R A 2

RoZBE=F+H-HE  ARFAEE
PRET SRR M (T ak)) o B . AL
71464 4 W 9847 8t £ 41,000,000 76 1 —
FE B 21 TR T % A 0 i
% (TR ) T AR R A &8 B
6,000,000% & 2 & % (14— He &%) -
AR 2tk A L 190 9 B O IR
DR EAA N A S MER L B
35,000,000% TE 1% B % 2 ek %
et > EAKTT 45 (5 B AT H B (L35 %
H) % =22/ E+ A=+ (18
B ) B — S 0 2 R f] I TR 1 5 e
B o % T SRR ER N 0 (1) i O
111283 58 (7] T J4) 5 s (i B A
2 R M) 3 b 2 S 9 G 2 3O
3 E IR - ol 35RO R 2 B 1
5 FR R 22 A48T A KT AE A 2 T
H1 2 90% » I {FL s 75 783416 1 JE 1 7E 40 i
B2 HE - ZEEETR -BBAFN
A=A B2 AR B A 2 7 8 b
SR AT TSR - LU P A 4 M 1 05%
R B4 L

WA > ARF IR ZEE=ZFETA T
H B MR AT S s M35 (TERF)) - 0k > A
28 ) T SRR AR R A o ] A 2 b
A o ARPR B AE 2 ARK o SR MK A HE R R
ey > A AR B E B AT A &L 15%
BRLIOQAZ B A AR - REELEK
1.128# 7T (A1 T o #) o KA AR A B M
B EFET RN (BEZE) EEB A
(BLIE % H) J1 18] 1 B e A7 o 7 30 B EE o
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 34. W MIRE T (41)

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Continued)

The Tranche 1 Bonds of US$6 million and the Bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of US$7 million
("Tranche 2 Bonds”) were issued to ML on November 13,
2003 and June 10, 2004, respectively.

The issue of remaining three tranches of the Bonds is
subject to the approval from the shareholders of the
Company. The proposed resolutions to approve the
issue of these three tranches of the Bonds and the
shares to be issued upon conversion of such Bonds and
the exercise of the related subscription rights were not
passed by the shareholders at the Special General
Meeting held on December 19, 2003.

During the vyear, approximately US$4.6 million
(approximately HK$35.6 million) of the Tranche 1 Bonds
(2004: approximately US$1.4 million (approximately
HK$10.9 million)) were converted to ordinary shares of
the Company. Approximately US$1 million
(approximately HK$7.8 million) of the Tranche 2 Bonds
were converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the repurchase and amendment
agreement ("Amended Agreement”) dated October 7,
2004, the Company repurchased the principal amount
of approximately US$3.5 million (approximately HK$27.3
million) of the Tranche 2 Bonds at a repurchase price of
approximately US$3.85 million (approximately HK$30.0
million). The remaining outstanding balance of the
Tranche 2 Bonds can be redeemed by the Company for
an amount equal to 115% of the principal amount
pursuant to the Amended Agreement. Remaining
outstanding balance of approximately US$2.5 million
(approximately HK$19.5 million) of the Tranche 2 Bonds
were redeemed by the Company before the balance
sheet date.

ARG R AT ()

45 141t 6,000,000 7T < fi 75 Bl A 4 40 40
7,000,000 T 2 77 ([ 24400855 1) T35
MR —FEF=2F+—A+=H K _FZFN
FENH T HEBETTEM -

B~ = H U JHBUS AS 2 R iR A HEAR T
AEEAT o A7 BR R AT B = A R K IR S A
S 40 JC T 51 F B AT 2 BBEA3 KA Bl R
iz kiR R —FF =+ A+
JUH BRAT 2 B SRR K € b Sl R B
o

40 > #74,600,000% JC (735,600,000
) ZHE—MERE(ZFFWE A
1,400,000 7t (%)10,900,000i# 7t) ) £
ey AR N B 2 — R A - #11,000,0003%
JC (%77,800,000# 7o) < & i = C ¥
BB A RN T 2 — I

WERMA - FZNESTHEHZBHE K
BRI ak (MERTHhak)) > A2 =] LA B (&
3,850,000 7t (%)30,000,000% 75) - M
| A <5 % 4 /% 3,500,000% T (4
27,300,000 7t) < % —Hfd %5 - MigE
Rl ek o BR T M ORMEE 2 58 IR AT
AN T UARE A SR 16% 2 R E -
## #H #7 2,500,000 7t (%719,500,000%#
T0) 2 AR R IR A R E A 2 R
M o
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. &AL IA
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets UTtSﬁAZI-‘EF@&HﬂFﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ$$&%ﬁfﬁﬂZEﬁﬁ
recognised and movements thereon during the current R A B TH A AR T E A A B AR ) -
and prior reporting periods.
THE GROUP Ny |
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
o 228 58 I 7 i I s 18 A5t
HK$°000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000
F ik F ko F it
At April 1, 2003 RA_FF=FMA—H 3 ) -
(Credit) charge to income A TR A W i 3R
statement for the year (FFA) 0Bk M 1 -
Effect of change in tax rate Tl % St ) 2 28 1 m -
At March 31, 2004 W FEREMNE=H=1—H 3 3 -
Charge (credit) to income EANY €T RS
statement for the year (FFA) F0BR 15 (15) -
At March 31, 2005 AEREHAFE=ZA=1+—H 18 (18) =
At March 31, 2005, the Group has estimated unused tax MN_EERE=A=+—H » XEHTH
losses of HK$127,906,000 (2004: HK$116,208,000) DA 81 A 21 v 1] 22 A w5t oA By B H s 18 4
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax 127,906,000 & ( = & & g 4 :
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$102,000 116,208,000 0) ° £ #E102,000%5 7t (—
(2004: HK$15,000) of the tax losses. No deferred tax ZEPY A 15,0000 76) 2 Bi H 18 R
asset has been recognised for the remaining estimated R E BT EE o Bl A R AT 8 R AR T ) 2R
tax losses of HK$127,804,000 (2004: HK$116,193,000) A? > FLER Al 5Bl JH 5 15 127,804,000 76
due to the uncertainty of future profits streams. Included TEEPAE 116,193,000 JC) f7 4
in unrecognised estimated tax losses are losses of ?uLLﬁE@QF o I M RR Al B JE e 4E
HK$4,993,000 (2004: HK$2,003,000) that will expire within AL 355 7 AR A JiE T 2 4,993,000 7T (—
5 years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. REPY4E 2,003,000 0) EH o H Atk
18 W] I B M 45 o
THE COMPANY A A
At March 31, 2005, the Company has estimated unused MEZEEAFE=ZH=+—H > AEHH
tax losses of HK$72,622,000 (2004: HK$47,538,000) DA 81 A 216 v 1] 22 A w5t oA By B OH s 18 4
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax 72,622,000 6 (= & F |4 4
asset has been recognised due to uncertainty of future 47,538,000 7)) ° A Al E AR i
profits streams. Losses may be carried forward FIBCYR - 50 40 e SR AR AE Bl TE & 7 - e 1B
indefinitely. A A R A 45 e o
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On December 20, 2004, December 22, 2004 and July 15,
2004, the Group acquired 100% equity inferests in China

Gas Investment Construction Limited, China Gas

Pipeline Limited and United Keen, respectively, at a total

consideration of HK$101,587,000.

NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables

W S 2 T
Wik~ s Kot
s

52 o W TR EL At B Wi e K

BATHEAT KRB &

B2 R B At R A+ R

Bank and other borrowings SRAT B HoAth 15 £

Minority interests DB RRE 25

Goodwill P

Discount on acquisition kg i A o ) T

SATISFIED BY AT R

Cash consideration e RE

Deposits for investments BE R 2

NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING I ol o v E AR 2
ON ACQUISITION B4 Ui TR

Cash consideration paid LA B AR

Bank balances and cash acquired Ul 2 SR AT 45 A7 M 3 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i3

36.

WSz S S 2 )

REZRENES A = H - BB
“HZ AR CERFNELAHEE - K
£ 8 DL R1E 101,587,000% I 43 All Wi fig
China Gas Investment Construction
Limited ~ China Gas Pipeline Limited }

United Keenz 100%#H 25 o

Carry amounts

and fair values

YR T AL % 2 AL

2005 2004
ZRRRAE TR AR
HK$'000 HK$ 000
T T T # T
111,693 64,443
475 -
1,761 26,007
22,177 6,550
(20,478) (10,783)
(57.143) (38,095)
(8.466) (23.450)
50,019 24,672
51,718 93,501
(150) -
101,587 118,173
94,920 118,173
6,667 -
101,587 118,173
(94,920) (118,173)
22,177 6,550
(72,743) (111,623)
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. Wi Bff )& > W oAE)

The goodwill arising on the above acquisitions is
atfributable to the anfticipated profitability of the
Group’s gas connection and sales of piped gas
businesses.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year contributed
HK$38,192,000 (2004: HK$60,536,000) to the Group's
tfurnover, and a profit of HK$24,860,000 (2004:
HK$50,747,000) to the Group's profit from operations.

Pro forma unaudited Group’s revenue and results

If the acquisition had been completed on April 1, 2004,
unaudited Group’s revenue and Group’s net profit for
the year ended March 31, 2005 would have been
HK$412,344,000 and HK$129,650,000, respectively. The
pro forma information is presented for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indicative
revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on April 1, 2004, and is not infended fo
be a projection of future results.

] L 7t o J AT 7 A 2 TR T A A AR TR
SRUHE B I 8 B B TR IR SRE T < T M g
jj o

AF T WS S 2 ) A AR T B SR A
B i A 73 5 E A 38,192,000 7T (—F%F
4 : 60,536,000 &) K G A
24,860,000 &t ( — % % |4 4
50,747,000%78) ©

15 7% R RE A 45 T 2 O A B S At

Wy FHE R —FFMENH —H%E
B R KSR AR A B A S R
FERFE=ZA =+ —H 142 55
%43 7l £ 412,344,000% 75 & 129,650,000
T o B ERREMB A > WA
SR b 3 PR A 4 [ W =B T PUAEDY H — H 58
halg g g2 PAIONIE 3 -G E -4
B A 2 SERAF T




4”4 Y CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37.

During the year, the Group disposed of 100% in Luckford
Enterprises Limited at a consideration of HK$17,050,000.

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF HEZIFEE
Property, plant and equipment W ~ s Rk
Properties held for development SR LS
Gooduwill A
Inventories eacy
Trade and other receivables 2 5 I WA T % A A B
Pledged bank deposits K ERAT A
Bank balances and cash SRAT A S B &
Trade and other payables B 5 AT B 3 e Al 1R £ B K
Amount due to a minority R BUBER
shareholder RIH
Taxation BiIH
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B HoAth A7 £
Minority interests DB R RE 25
(Loss) gain on disposals HE (E18) dea
Profit on disposal of discontinued HE BRI T
operation 2 i
Total cash consideration B AR AE AR
Net cash flow arising on disposal: WEEAEZH & EIFA
Cash consideration B ARME
Bank balances and cash W& X SRIT R AT
disposed of Je B4

The subsidiary disposed of during the year did not have
any material effect on the Group’s furnover and the
Group'’s profit from operations.

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended
March 31, 2004 conftributed HK$129,791,000 to the
Group’s turnover and had a loss of HK$518,000 included
in the Group's profit from operations.

t & B g 2 )

N> AL LARE 17,050,000 7T i &
N AR A FE A BR 2 F 2 100%HE 28

2005 2004
ZRRRAE TR AR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T C T # T
- 111,666
18,700 -
= 4,765
- 10,169
25 14,298
- 9,524
= 64,198
(25) (48,788)
- (6,848)
- (7.331)
= (32.890)
- (38,999)
18,700 79,764
(1,650) 20,017
- 7,569
17,050 107,350
17,050 107,350
= (64,198)
17,050 43,152

A 2 B 2 AR T 2 S
A4 B 2 K88 s 1Rl I O B

ACFFMESAS—HILEE W
CE PR N ES AR
129,791,000 7t & 7 4 jk5 1 518,000
6+ Sk A 9 I 2 A
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38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group acquired cerfain property,
plant and equipment with the deposits paid in prior
year of HK$151,600,000 which were included in “trade
and other receivables” at March 31, 2004.

During the year ended March 31, 2004, the Group
established certain subsidiaries in the PRC, a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary contributed the capital in
the form of property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of HK$9,524,000.

During the year ended March 31, 2004, the Group
entered info a finance lease arrangement in respect of
an asset with a total capital value of the inception of
the lease of HK$350,000.

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitment
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
ZRERRE TR LY 4R
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T T F it T
Within one year — N 1,432 727
In the second to fifth year inclusive 28 —.4F 2 %8 L 4F (G145 14 Wi 4F) 316 1,788
1,748 2,515

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group in respect of leasehold land and buildings.
Leases for rentfed premises are negotiated for an
average term of 2 years with fixed rental.

h=iid
-

38. FHIHEKS

JRAE A > SR B T Y36 - WU Rk
o 6 B AR BE ST 2 42 151,600,000
7t ABBIEFIA —EZINE=ZA=+—H
2 [ T I W B g % HL At B IR T ) JHL Y

BE-ZEBNEZH =+ —HIEFEER
A% 45 S o R 2 T WA T > — 4
Ja& N w0 8RR DA B T (B 9,524,000 It
2 BRI AR -

WEZFFWE=ZA=+— A LFER -
A B T LS B - B A L
Z LAY #8 K A {H 75 350,000 7T -

39. MEMA R
A 4 AR s AR AN

RESF A - A BUARYEAE T 51 ) e
Z FH B W 3 22 O AT JRIEH A A A T R
R RN Z R ST -

K8 R 2 A e A 4 B B LA 2 3
EMET A 2 e - HEYEMOKEE
T R A > HEEE -
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 39. s ML L PE (4)

The Group as lessor A 45 AR A AN

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted REEEH - AREAE T 513 [ i 2 R ]
with tenants for the following future minimum lease FHIH R EREL - AL B F 5
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in PLR R AR I AR 4 25 5T & 4 ¢

respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
AR
2005 2004
“ERNIE e 22 s
HK$’000 HK$°000
F T T it oo
Within one year —4E A - 684
In the second to fifth year inclusive 28 —4F & 28 HAE (W45 H B W 4F) - 18
- 702
Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years. FHL &) 2 °F 24 4F 1 48 5% E £y W 4F o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. E AR KIS
(i) On October 24, 2004, a subsidiary of the Company (y —ZZFZWE+A-+MH » AQAF—
entered into an agreement with Cangzhou 9% WfF Jo8 > ] BELYE M 7T N B BUR T S
Municipal Government ¥ T A BB ¥, pursuant to oo PRI > A5 A R R B R — R
which all parties have agreed to establish a sino- FAGEREANRA (TBMEEL
foreign equity joint venture company ("Cangzhou Al o EEREIMIEHE R - BE R
JV") in the PRC which principally engages in the BERRAEHEPLE LB ERL > U
design, construction and operation of natural gas Fe 4 R 8 R AR AR o AR B T ok 2
pipeline network and ancillary facilities as well as oo s B A A e M A E A E W
provision of piped natural gas in Cangzhou. % A [ #35,000,0000C » IG5 EA
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the A 43 Bl E A 4 ] R e TN R BT
subsidiary will contribute RMB$35,000,000 to H70% % 30%HME 15 ©

Cangzhou JV. Cangzhou JV will be owned as to
70% by the Group, 30% by M i A R B .
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

@i

(iii)

(v)

On November 4, 2004, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company signed a cooperation agreement
with [ 78t F A R 80 TN RBUS and obtained the
exclusive operation right on natural gas business in
Qinzhou City for a term of 30 years. The Group will
invest RMB20,000,000 to set up a wholly foreign-
owned enferprise, which principally engages in the
design, construction and operation of natural gas
pipeline network and ancillary facilities as well as
provision of piped natural gas in Qinzhou City.

5, 2004,
subsidiaries of the Company signed a cooperation
agreement with Ji& Fg itk B 6 W E AT @& )R and
obtained the exclusive operation right on natural

On November two wholly owned

gas business in £#kTi for a term of 30 years. The
Group will invest RM20,000,000 to set up a wholly
owned enterprise.

On November 25, 2004, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company signed a cooperation agreement
with Wt & 5 Wi N R Efand obtained the
exclusive operation right on natural gas business in
Qinhexian for a term of 30 years. The Group will
invest HK$2,000,000 to set up a wholly foreign-
owned enferprise, which principally engages in the
design, construction and operation of natural gas
pipeline network and ancillary facilities as well as
provision of piped natural gas in Qinhexian.

S 255l 2 R

b= {2
HH

40. EARKYE (4

)

(iii)

(iv)

MEFZNEL—ANHE > AAF—
K 4 I 2 ) BV St R YA [ 8K
TN BB 5T & MR e - I IS
SR T R IR S EH < HEHE - B30
4 o AR F M E N IR 20,000,000
TG A BSE A A 2 - DL A
2SN T R IR RE A AR L i
Z A B R A WRMEER

MEZFFNFEr—HRH > AW
K 4 I 2 W) B P St B
AN R BB AR R A R ek o
BHEEMTRRAETZHEEE 5
B304 - AEEMEE AR
20,000,0007¢ A% 37 — %K 4 & M & 2>
= -

“ERNE+—AZ+HH > ARAH
2 R 2 ) BT 1L 3 R A R B
JiF R A AR o M ERAS L &
R RRFEH R B > [ 305 -
A< 45 [ % 4 & 2,000,000 7T 57—
PRANEE! |- gioe e 3 S TR A R0
BRIE S AT - B R AR RARREE
M R - DL R R E KRR

=

R °
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(v) On November 30, 2004, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company signed a cooperation agreement
with XM A RBUfand obtained the exclusive
operation right on natural gas business in Tianmen
city for a term of 30 years. The Group will invest
HK$9,450,000 to set up a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise, which principally engages in the design,
construction and operation of natural gas pipeline
network and ancillary facilities as well as provision
of piped natural gas in Tianmen city.

(vi) In January 2005, the Company was granted the
licence for a period of 30 years to operate the
pipelined gas project for Jiang Bei district of
Nanjing City through the tender made by the
Company in November 2004. The Group will invest
RMB200,000,000 to set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary which principally engages in the design,
construction and operation of natural gas pipeline
network and ancillary facilities as well as provision
of piped natural gas in Jiang Bei district of Nanjing
City.

(vii) On March 31, 2005, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company signed a cooperation agreement
with People’s Government of Xicoshan district of
Hangzhou City #uJH i # L & A R EBUM, and obtfained
the exclusive operation right on natural gas
business in Xiaoshan district of Hangzhou city for a
tferm of 30 years. The Group will invest
RMB100,000,000 to set up a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise, which principally engages in the design,
construction and operation of natural gas pipeline
network and ancillary facilities as well as provision
of piped natural gas in Xiaoshan district of
Hangzhou city.

Save as disclosed above, as at March 31, 2005, the
Group has capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition for property, plant and equipment and
constfruction materials for property, plant and
equipment confracted for but not provided in the
financial statements amounting to HK$661,157,000
(2004: HK$572,712,000) and HK$405,968,000 (2004:
HK$561,696,000), respectively.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40.

BARTRKIE ()

V) REZZFNFE+—H=1TH» KAuH
2 I > F) B R P TN R BUR 85T
A e E - WHS KM RRAED
ZHEHE > BYIS0E - ALEMKIRE
9,450,000k 7T I 1 At 37 4 7 08 & 1
XS DEERFERMHTRARAREEH
4% Rl E R 2 B RE - @ KR
A7 42 A KRR -

i) RZFFRE—H > ARFAR_FZF
PO A A — H S AR e e [
BRRFIAE > BENREE LA
H > B304 - AEEMBENRH
200,000,0007% % 7. 4 & it & A 7 o
W Iyt - B R AR R AR
FEE A BB E RO > DK AE P AL
Tk b 5 42 A8 7 R AR SR -

VIDR-ZERFEZA=+—H - AL
2 Y 25 ) B 7 70 AL AL R B
FEERT A M 5+ S A 17 L
R 2 S HE - A IB0F -
7% 4 [ 4% £ % A I % 100,000,0007%
VR S 40 R % DA
o T 7 L AR S A A R
B2 B - E R R - R
BRRR -

BRUL LTl &40 > i FFRFE=H =
T H o AR T AT A R R B
xR B WY ¥ - BE RS kY
% BE RS 2 /A AR A B
661,157,000 & ( — & & 4 4
572,712,000 75) £ 405,968,000 76 (=
FE A : 561,696,000 7t) 2 & A K
i o
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41.

42.

43.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
THE GROUP

The Group pledged certain property, plant and
equipment having a net book value of HK$399,393,000
(2004: HK$39,682,000) and certain subsidiaries pledged
their own investments in other subsidiaries to banks to
secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has given guarantees to banks in respect
of banking facilities utilised by subsidiaries amounted to
HK$133,333,000 (2004: HK$238,095,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effective from December 1, 2000, the Group has
joined a MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the confrol of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and ifs employees are each required fo make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect of
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available

fo reduce the confribution payable in the future years.

Employees located in the PRC are covered by the
retirement and pension schemes defined by local
practice and regulations.

The calculation of contributions for PRC eligible staff is
based on certain percentage of the applicable payroll
costs. The confribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated
based on the rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which
is 5% on the basic salary of the relevant employee
subject to a specific ceiling.

41.

42.

43.

B 265l 2 A

¥ 7 A
A

7 4 18] 4% B 18 V5 (EL #9399, 393,000 76 (—
F R4 39,682,000 C) & TH)
3~ RS B B H At TR W 2 %
HIFRUBEE  EARTALEZE
ARE KA o

h=iid
-

HARE

N S SN /A R
133,333,000 ©t ( = & % U 4
238,095,000 7t) < $R47 Ml & [0 4147 1F th
PR -

B A At

BB H— HE » AEE AT
AR B 2005 6 AR E o mE
S EFE DR AR S B
WA RSB A REM - B S
B 2 G LA A ) K Ay B R AT S
SLAZFENE I o IRIFWMAR S EHE 2 HLA
1 £ e g B B ZE AL AR 2 2 L 3R aZ st
B o A 42 [k B AR B w2 ME— AT
Bl mt B 2 TR AR o 3 4 VR i 4t 3Kk AT
B WA A A B4R B A 22 AR o

I 149 ff B 2 3t 7 1 491 B B RE S 2 AR AR B
B AR w ) OR

B A A% BT AR T TR
FAR E o Lo at o 5 A B w2 Y
AR 58 A <2 Ok 1) BT B B R B G o BDA B
1R B S ¥ 2 5% N E bR




g ¥4 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED

=112

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 ¥ 5% [t

For the year ended March 31,2005 # % ~FF h4E = H =+ —H 1L F %

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 44. WEIRHERT#

The share option scheme was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on
February 6, 2003 (the "Scheme”) for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to any directors of the
Company, any employees of the Group, or any
employee, partner or director of any business
consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser or
legal adviser of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme
("Scheme Mandate Limit") or, if such 10% limit is
refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the
renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which optfions may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permiftted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue.
Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors. Where any grant
of options to substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective
associate would result in the shares of the Company
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the
date of grant must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

AN A MR RE S (Taz et ) T5 i R
WA AR ZFEF=4F N H@ R 2R
R RAN o Fiatdl 2% 8 T B 3E B4 5
AT~ A LR BT AT R B s AE ] £
B~ BB - WMEE M SOk B 2
fETEE - BiEak#ES o

AR5 w BT8R 2 S T O B 2 BB A
A SR E R EE B A AL A B BT R
7 2 10% (T&t & HE LR D) 200052 10%FR
BT US> FI 48 R A v AR S 4
EFRE B A2 R B EAT B 210% - FAT
o AR 48R % w0 T 452 ) L 18 R AT B 2 B AR
A7 (o 5 Fs HEE T T E R AT 2 M AR B B IR A
BEEAAFARRCESTKMHEEZ
30% o AT AT — 10 4F BE 82 F AL AT A £ 2 B It
RERT ¥ R 2 e B > A5 B8 E R A A
A AT BOH 1% o AR IR T A
T B 2~ A7 AR R B T R R A B B S
AT E R HAE o AT B T B
st R B AT: o] 8 57 JF oA B o AT A M R
N8 5] 2 AT IR O 1 B B R
AR5 R B BEAT B B 8 AT 4B AR 28 R
B BAT A0 % i A Lk 4 A H Ay 1k AR
J1{E {4 # %4 5,000,000%: 7t » T %13 8| A&
O )R S A -
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44, FERAEST ) ()

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from Wi > A AR I R 2 AE(E 0% 00 - Bk
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$10 per each MERT A S G 2 H IR M A2
grant. Options may be exercised at any time from the | 7 A T Bl IR AT o AT AE A A R
date to be determined by the board of directors to the HEETE > WA ERLL P2 E ()
tenth anniversary of the date of grant.The exercise price B B AR R e i E G B2
is determined by the directors of the Company, and will B A E R 2 T E & Gil)
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the JB A5 T A o

Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.
At B A SO R H R R =T
The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from the HH B k4o
date of adoption unftil February 5, 2013.
TR B (BLI5#E ) B A 2w B

The following table discloses details of the Company’s MZ2HBERE-ZZAF=H=+—H
share options held by employees (including directors) AE T A B 4R A A RE 2 5 ) s L

and movements in such holdings during the two years
ended March 31, 2005:

Number Number Number
Exercise of share Granted of share Granted Exercised Lapsed of share
price options at during options at during during during options at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 4.1.2003 the year 3.31.2004 the year the year the year 3.31.2005
RZZZZ4
WH—H REFRNE REZRLE
2k WA—HZ WA—HZ
i B AT R RN BEHE  ENCRE  BRESE  SRCRL  FRCHE  ERCER BRENH
HK$
WL
Directors 4
1.9.2004 9.1.2004 fo % 1.8.2014 0.80 - 33,240,711 33,240,711 - - - 33,240,711
10.6.2004 Note 1 i3] 0.71 - - - 220,000,000 - - 220,000,000
10.6.2004 Note 2 ft£2 0.71 - - - 9,100,000 - - 9,100,000
- 33,240,711 33,240,711 229,100,000 - - 262,340,711
Other employeestLfli i B
1.9.2004 9.1.2004 fo % 1.8.2014 0.80 - 88,000,000 88,000,000 - (5.780,000)  (1,100,000) 81,120,000
10.6.2004 Note 2 if7t2 0.71 - - - 166,300,000 - - 166,300,000

= 88,000,000 86,000,000 166,300,000 (5,780,000)  (1,100,000) 247,420,000

- 121,240,711 121,240,711 395,400,000 (5,780,000)  (1,100,000) 509,760,711
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44.

45.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Notes:

(1) The exercisable period is from November 22, 2004 to
October 5, 2014.The exercise of the options will be subject
to the condition that the consolidated net asset value of
the Company and its subsidiaries which shall be certified
by the auditors appointed by the Company as at the date
of the exercise of the options being not less than HKS$1
billion.

(2) The original exercisable period was July 1, 2005 to
October 5, 2014. Pursuant to the resolution passed in the
board of directors meeting held on March 20, 2005, the
exercisable period is changed fo the period from March
20, 2005 to October 5, 2014.

The consideration received during the year from the
directors and employees for taking up the opftions
granted amounted to HK$1,000 (2004: HK$1,000).

The total fair value, which represents the total market
value, of the Company’s share at the date of issues for
the exercise of share optfions during the year is
HK$7,901,000.

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s financial
statements until such time as the options are exercised,
and no charge is recognised in the income statement
in respect of the value of options granted in the year.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) On April 28, 2004, the Company issued 130,000,000
ordinary shares of HKS$0.01 each for a ftotal
consideration of HK$84,500,000 to Mr. Liu Ming Hui,
the managing director of the Company.

(i) On May 19, 2004, HEH#HK, o wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with a minority shareholder of Huainan
China Gas in relation to the acquisition of the
remaining 30% equity interests of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary - Huainan China Gas at zero
consideration ("Huainan China Gas Acquisition”).
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On July 27, 2004, # i entered into an
agreement with a minority shareholder of Suizhou
Zhongran in relation to the acquisition of the
remaining 10% equity interests of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary - Suizhou Zhongran at zero
consideration ("Suizhou Zhongran China Gas
Acquisition”).

Discount on acquisitions arising from the Huainan
China Gas Acquisition and Suizhou Zhongran
China Gas Acquisition is HK$10,815,000.

On August 19, 2004, the Company entered into an
agreement with the vendor in relation to the
acquisition of the entire share capital and the
shareholder loan of Great Sun Investment Co. Ltd.,
which held 25% equity inferests in Xiacogan Zhenrong
Gas Co., Ltd. Hanchuan Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd.
Yingcheng Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd. Yumeng Jiaxu Gas
Co., Ltd. and Xiaogan Jianxu Gas Co., Ltd. at a total
consideration of RMB81,600,000 (approximately
HK$77,714,000). On the same date, H1Hi# % entered
info agreements with the vendor in relation to
acquisition of 10% equity interests in Hanchuan
Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd. Yingcheng Jiaxu Gas Co. Ltd.
Yumeng Jiaxu Gas Co., Ltd., and Xiaogan Jianxu
Gas Co., Ltd. at a ftotal consideration of
RMB17,700,000 (approximately HK$16,856,000). The
goodwill arising from the above acquisitions of
additional interest in subsidiaries is HK$50,543,000.
The goodwill arising on this acquisition is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
Group’s gas connection and sales of piped gas
businesses.

During the year, the Group purchased gas for total
amount of HK$23,711,000 (2004: HK$9,039,000)
from minority shareholders of subsidiaries for the
price agreed by both parties.

(iif)

(iv)

b= {2
HH
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(i)

(i)

46. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On April 1, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company
entered info a cooperation agreement with 7 & iz
AR EJFpursuant to which a wholly owned
subsidiary namely Nanlingxion Zhongran City Gas
Development Company Ltd ("Nanlingxian
Zhongran”) will be formed and owned by the
Group. The registered capital of Nanlingxian

Zhongran will be RMB10,000,000.

On April 7, 2005, the Company entered into an
agreement with &4 i # & i (Maoming City
Construction Bureau) for the establishment of a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise,

Zhongran City Gas

Maoming
Development Co., Ltd.
in the PRC which
principally engages in the design, construction

("“Maoming Zhongran”)

and operation of natural gas pipeline network and
ancillary facilities as well as provision of piped
natural gas in Maoming. The registered capital of
Maoming Zhongran will be RMB50,000,000.

On April 11, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company
enfered into an agreement with %5 FL 5% A 5] 85 %77 Ik &
KA PR 2 7] (Shaoxing County China Qing Fang
City Piped Gas Company Limited) ("PRC Party”),
pursuant to which both parties have agreed to
establish a sino-foreign equity joint venture
company, Shaoxing Zhongran City Gas
Development Co., Ltd. ("Shaoxing JV") in the PRC
which principally engages in the design,
construction and operation of natural gas pipeline
network and ancillary facilities as well as provision
of piped natural gas in Shaoxing County. Pursuant
tfo the ferms of the agreement, the subsidiary will
contribute RMB38,500,000 to Shaoxing JV. The
registered capital
RMB?70,000,000.

of Shaoxing JV will be
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46. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

(v)

)

v

(vii)

On April 18, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company
enfered info a cooperation agreement with# Ml i &
& AR B pursuant to which a wholly owned
subsidiary namely Xuzhou Zhongran City Gas
Development Company Ltd (“Xuzhou Zhongran™)
will be formed and owned by the Group. The
registered capital of Xuzhou Zhongran will be
RMB10,000,000.

On April 18, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a cooperation agreement with# It i
AR B pursuant to which a wholly owned
subsidiary namely Xinyi Zhongran City Gas
Development Company Limited (“Xinyi Zhongran™)
will be formed and owned by the Group. Xinyi
Zhongran was established on June 8, 2005 with
registered capital of HK$10,000,000.

On April 18, 2005, the Company and eleven
foreign banks signed a facility agreement for a
five-year international syndicated loan in an
amount of US$60,000,000.

On April 27, 2005, the Company entered info a
subscription agreement to subscribe 190 new
shares of China Review Network Limited ("China
Review”) for a consideration of HK$9,500,000,
China Review is engaged in the business of
publication of business magazine.

(viii) In April 2005, a subsidiary of the Company entered

into a cooperation agreement with Ji & % A K BURF
pursuant tfo which a wholly owned subsidiary
namely Fengtai Zhongran City Gas Development
Company Ltd (“Fengtai Zhongran”) will be formed
and owned by the Group. The registered capital of
Fengtai Zhongran will be RMB5,000,000.

h=iid
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(xi)

(xii)

46. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

In April 2005, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a cooperation agreement with 2 11§ A & B
pursuant to which a wholly owned subsidiary
namely Huoshan Zhongran City Gas Development
Company Ltd (*Huoshan Zhongran”) will be formed
and owned by the Group. Huoshan Zhongran was
established on June 24, 2005 with registered
capital of RMB5,000,000.

On May 3, 2005, pursuant to the subscription
agreement dated on February 19, 2005, the
Company allotted and issued 210,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price
of HKS$1.158 per share to GAIL (India) Limited, an
independent investor.

On May 9, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company
entered info a cooperation agreement withi 7K i
AN R B pursuant to which a wholly owned
subsidiary namely Guangshui Zhongran City Gas
Development Company Ltd (“Guangshui
Zhongran™) will be formed and owned by the
Group. Guangshui Zhongran will have registered

capital of HK$7,500,000.

On June 23, 2005, the Company enfered into a
conditional subscription agreement with CQS
Convertible and Quantitative Strategies Master
Fund Limited ("CQS") and Courtenay Enterprises
Limited ("Courtenay”) whereby CQS and
Courtenay had agreed to subscribe for the United
States dollar denominated Bonds to be issued at
par by the Company in an aggregate principal
amount of US$40,000,000.
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RESULTS

TURNOVER

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE
TAXATION

TAXATION CREDIT
(CHARGE)

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE
MINORITY INTERESTS

MINORITY INTERESTS

NET (LOSS) PROFIT FOR
THE YEAR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTERESTS

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

e

FRBLAT (5 8)
i ]

i TE A
(32 i)

W 2> RO SRR i i
(5 18) 5 A

D WO R 47

AAEFE (B1R)
ping RG]

D BB R 47

For the year ended March 31,
BE=H=1—HIL4EE

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
SEF4E SRR BT CTRNE SRRAHE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
T F o F oo F it oo F# T
4,169 4,827 85,5637 376,491 410,202
(5.172) (7.383) (64,825) 118,212 169,489
- 89 (1.861) (1.344) (1.475)

(5.172) (7.294) (66,686) 116,868 168,014
- - (2,987) (36,808) (35.765)

(56.172) (7,294) (69.673) 80,060 132,249

At March 31,
WR=A=+—H

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
SER4E SRR BT CTRNE SRRAE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
T F o F oo F it oo T+
71,754 108,968 501,507 1,342,279 2,750,723
(4.569) (5.044) (297,049) (748,484) (1.664,822)
- - (69.732) (91.121) (97.360)

67,185 103,924 144,726 502,674 988,541
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Location

Leasehold land and buildings
&+ Rt F

In Hong Kong:
A

No. 151 Gloucester Road,
16/F., AXA Centre

Wan Chai
Hong Kong
AT

&L ITE1515%

I iy 0 1 o1

In the People’s Republic of China:
i N RILANE

TRYNIT V8 7 K 7 500255%
Bt 5 B 5 BIE 1301 &

Properties held for development

HFEERZ Y%

No. 28 - 30 Kai Tak Road
Kowloon City

Kowloon

Hong Kong

i

JUHE JUBE IR
75 28 — 30%%

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

i

Group’s
Type interest (%)
B AR [ Z R 25 (%)
Office premises 100
I/NEL /B 100
Commercial 100
[EES
Vacant land 100
72 g 100

T R

Lease term

itk ]

Long lease

RAHA

Medium term lease

i AH

Medium fterm lease

A AH
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